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PUSHPANJALL
To,
1he Manager- Corporate Compliance’
Naticual Stock Exchange of India Limited

Fxchange Plaza, BandraKuria Complex,
RBandra (East), Mumbai 400051

Seript Code: NSE -- PUSHPREALM
Drear Sil'/leciéIH,

Sub: Intimation of Vifth Annual General Meeting of the company pursuaut o

vegulations of SEBI (Listing_obligation and disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015,

Notice is hereby given that the Fifth Annua! General Meeting of the Merabers of Pushpanjah Realis
and Infeatech Limited will be held on Friday, the 28"day of September, 2018 at 10:30 A.M. at Hotel
Himgi Residency neav Punjab National Bank, DevpuraChowk, Main Road Hai-:.'u.i\v:;lr—24()4()\
Uttrakhand, tndia, to Lransacl the business as set out in the notice convening the AGM which has been
sent to the members at their registered addresses/email addresses.

We herewith enclose the Copy of the notice ofAnnual Genzral Meeting for the financial year 2017-
2018,

This is for your information and record.

Yours faithfully,
Pushpanjali Reatns AndiInfratech Limited

Deepak Mitial
(Managiig [irector)
DEN: 01616201
Add: 171 A, Teg Bahaduy Road
Dehradun-248001,

Uttarakhand. India

Date: 28.08.2018
Piace: Dehradun

C.1.No.: L70102UR2013PLC000787

PUSHPANJALI RE
ALMS AND INFR
(Formerly known as Pushpanjali Realms and [nj?aTtEchC?vLIEtIdl\;ﬂTED

Re .
Corporate Offics: Orchld Park, Khaﬂl;!zrs%ﬂ_lf_gs:hl:?hl H;uss;fDlevpura, Harldwar 242401 (LK) INDIA
- al, Near Helipad, Sahastrad _Rai :
Landline No.: 8791-08- pad, astradhara-Rajpur Link R
91-08-8791 |} Webslte: www.pushpanjalico || E-mall ID; imo@;ii'hgz:-':f""'m°°1 (UK INIA
. - jall.co



PUSHPANJALL

NOTICE CGNVENING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Members
ofPushpanjali Realms And Infratech Limited will be held on 28™day of Septcmber,
2018, Friday at 10:30 A.M. at Hotel Himgiri Residency necar Punjab National Bank,
DevpuraChowk, Main Road Hairdwar-249401 Uttrakhand, India (Route Map is
attached herewith) to consider and if thought fit to transact the following
business:

Ordinary business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements comprising of
Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the yecar ended
on 31st March, 2018&Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018 together with
Reports of Director & Auditor thereon..

“Resolved that Audited Financial Statement comprising statement ol Profit &
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 318 March, 2018&
Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018 along with the reporl ol the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thercon be and are hereby received, considered and
adopted.”

2. Re-apiﬁointment of M/s ArunNaresh& Co, Chartered Accountants, having firm
registration no. 007127N as the statutory auditors of the company and to fix
their remuneration. .

“Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 & other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations
framed there under as amended from time to time M/s ArunNaresh& Co.,
Chartered Accountants, bearing firm registration number 007127N, be and arce
hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of
five years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year ended at
31st March 2022, and at such remuneration as may be decided by Board of
Directors.”

C.LNo.: L70102UR2013PLC00D787

PUsHPAN]JALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
{(Formerly known as Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Put.itd.)

Reglsterad Office: Nath House, Devpura, Haridwar 2494
) H 3 , Hati 01 (UK} INDIA
c | )
orporate Office: ochhl::rPaﬂ; K.hasra No.11 Tarla Nagal, Near Helipad, Sahastradhara-Rajpur Link Road, Dehradun-248001 (UK) INDIA
andiine No.: 8791-08-8791 || Website: www.pushpanjali.co [| E-mail ID: info@pushpanjali.co



3. To appoint a director in place of Smt. Rakhi Mittal (MN:02531999)Ywho retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers hersell for re-appointment in this regard
pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 & other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the
rules and regulations framed there under, Smt. Rakhi Mittal (DIN:02531999)
who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offered herself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the company, liable
to retire by rotation”.

By order of the Board of Directors

Deepak Mittal
(Managing Director)
DIN: 01616201

Add: 1/1 A, TegBahadur Road,
Dehradun-248001,
Uttarakhand, India

Date: 28;08.2018
Place: Déhradun

g,



a) AN ENTITY BEING A MEMBER OF THI; COMPANY ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ITS AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE IN TERMS OF TiiE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 113 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THIE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING INSTEAD OF THE ENTITY AND THE AUTHORISED
‘REPRESENTATIVE SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE THE MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY.

b) AMEMBER ENTITLED TQO ATTEND AND YOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY, OR, WHERE THAT IS ALLO WED, ONI7 OR MORE PROXIES, TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, AND THAT A PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER. PROXIES, TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED BY
THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. THE
BLANK PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.

¢} THE DIRECTORS REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT
318T MARCH, 2018 IS ENCLOSED.

d) MEMBERS/PROXIES SHOULD BRING THE ATTENDANCE SLIP SENT
HEREWITH DULY FILED IN FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING.

e} IN CASE OF JOINT HOLDERS ONLY SUCH JOINT HOLDER WHO IS HIGHER
IN'THE ORDER OF NAMES WILL BE ENTITLED TG VOTE,

f) CORPORATE MEMBERS INTENDING TO SEND THEIR AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES TO ATTEND THE MEETING ARE REQUESTED TOSEND
A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF BOARD RESOLUTION.

g) THE ROUTE MAP SHOWING DIRECTIONS TO REACH THE VENUE OF THE
STHANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ANNEXED WITH THEREPORT.



Route Map of Fifth Annual General Meeting
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DIRF(‘TOR‘: REPORT

To

The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Director’s Report on the business and
operations of your Company along with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the
year ended 2 March, 2018,

inancial silmm:-sry‘n. hghlighis / performances of the company(standalone)

Tha Boerd's Report has been orepared baged on the stand alone financial statements of the
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3. Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Venture Companies included in the consolidated financial statement.

Gompany does not have any subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies. -

4, Dividend

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year,

5. Reserves

The Company proposes to transfer a sum of4,87,40,609/-to Reserves during the financial
year ended 31st March, 2018.

6. Brief description of the company’s working during the year / state of company’s
affair

During the year under review, the Company has earned a profit ofRs4,87,40,609/-for the
year ended 31® March 2018 and the Directors have been making continuous efforts to
increase the profitability of the Company and targets to achieve much better results in the
years to come.

7. Change in the nature of the business, if any
There is no change in the nature of business of the company.

8. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial_position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year2017-18(i.e. From
1st Day of At;ril 2018)of the company to which the financijal statements reiate and
tillthe date of this report.

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the
Company that have occurred between the balance shest date and date of this report.

9.Detail of significant and material orders passed by the requlators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

No such significant and material order has been passed by any regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

10.Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated
under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India



(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, marked as Annexure-
1 and is attached fo this report.

11.Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintain the highest possible standards of Corporate
Governance and adhere to the Cotporate Governance requirements set out by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Company has also implemented
several best possible Corporate Governance practices as prevalent globally.

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regutations, 2015 forms an integral part of
this Report marked as Annexure-2

12. Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibilitypursuant to the provisions of the section 135 of
the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable in our company

13. Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations oradverse remarks ot
disclaimers made by the auditors and/or the practicing company secretary in their
reports.

The Auditors’ Reportdoes not contain any comments, qualification, reservation or adverse
remark,

14. Financial Position

A) Issue of equiiy shares without differential voting rights

During the financial year, the company has listed its securities on NSE EMERGE platform
and issued 26,46,000 equity share of Rs. 10 each face value with premium of Rs. 45 per
share without djfferential voting rights.

B) Issue of equity shares with differential voting rights

No equity shares with differential voting rights have been issued by the company during the
financial year.

C) Issue of sweat equity shares
The Company has not issued sweat equity shares pursuant to provisions of Section 54 read

with Rule 8 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 during the
Financial Year.

D) Issue of employee stock options

The Company has not issued shares under employee’s stock options scheme pursuant to
provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, so



question does not arise about voting rights not exercised by employee during the year under
review.

E) Buy Back Of Securities

The Gompany has not bought back any of its securities pursuant to the provisions of Section
67 and Section 68 of the Companies Act 2013 during the year under review.

15. Annual return

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 1s furnished in the format of
MGT 9 marked as Annexure-3and is attached to this Report.

16.Statutory auditors:

Re-appointment of auditors

As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s ArunNaresh& Co.,
Chartered Accountants, having office atkP-1,Pitampura,New Delhi, 110034, Indiabearing
firm registration number 007127N were appointed as Statutory Auditors in the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 11" December, 2017 to hold the office upto the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

M/s ArunNaresh& Co., Chartered Accountants having office at KP-1, Pitampura, New Delhi,
110034, express their willingness for being re-appointed by Members at ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM) from the conclusion of this AGM and till the conclusion of the AGM
which is to be held in the financial year ending 31st March,2023. Their continuance of
appointment and payment of remuneration are to be confirmed and approved in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

17. Directors
A) Changes in Dj’rgctors and Key Managerial Personnel

There are no changes in composition of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
during the financial year 2017-2018.

B} Declaration by an Independent Director(s), if any

The Company has received declarations from ali the Independent Directors of the
Companyas per the provisions of Section 149 subsection (7) of the Companies Act, 2013,
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149
sub-section (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 4 of Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule, 2014 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

C) Formal Annual Evaluation



For the financial year 2017-18, the annual performance evaluation was carried out which
included evaluation of the Board, independent directors, nonindependent directors,
executive directors, Chairman, Committees of the Board, quantity, quality and timeliness of
information to the Board. The independent directors evaluated the performance of all nen-
independent directors, the Board, the Committees, the Chairman and the information to the
Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board evaluated performance
of the independent directors, the Board itself, the Chairman, the Executive Directors, the
Committees of the Board, the information provided to the Board. All results were satisfactory.

18. Number of Board Meetings of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors duly met 9 times during the financial year for which proper notices
were given and the proceedings were properly recorded in the Minutes Book maintained for
the purpose.

Serial no. Date of Board Meeting Name of director who attend Board Meeting

1. 23/05/2017 1.Deepak Mittal
2.Rakhi Mittal
3.RajpalWalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5 Raman Kumar Sah

6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

2. 06/06/2017 1.Deepak Mittat
- 2.Rakhi Mittal
3.Rajpal\Walia
4.Abhay Kumar
5.Raman Kumar Sah
6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

B

3. 03/07/2017 1.Deepak Mittal
2. Rakhi Mittal
3.RajpalWalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5 Raman Kumar Sah
8.Nivesh Kumar Jha

4. 30/08/2017 1.Deepak Mittal
2 Rakhi Mittal
3.RajpalWalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5 Raman Kumar Sah
8.Nivesh Kumar Jha




5. 16/10/2017 1.Deepak Mittal
2.Rakhi Mittal
3.RajpalWalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5.Raman Kumar Sah

6. Nivesh Kumar Jha

6. 11/11/2017 1.Deepak Mittal
2 Rakhi Mittal
3.Rajpalwalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5.Raman Kumar Sah
6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

7. 11112712017 1.Deepak Mittal
¢ 2.Rakhi Mittal
3 Rajpalwalia
4. Abhay Kumar
5 Raman Kumar Sah
6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

8. 17/01/2018 1.Deepak Mittal
2.Rakhni Mittal
3.RajpalWalia
4. Abhay Kumar
5.Raman Kumar Sah

6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

9. 29/03/2018 1.Deepak Mittal
2.Rakhi Mittal
3.RajpalWwalia
4.Abhay Kumar
5 Raman Kumar Sah

6.Nivesh Kumar Jha

19. Audit Committee

Pursuant to provision of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of
SEB! (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) Reguiation 2015. Audit Committee of
the company as on the date of this report constitute of following members:

'NAME OF DIRECTOR | STATUS NATURE OF DIRECTORSHIP
Raman Kumar Sah Member | Non- Executive & Independent Director
| Nivesh Kumar Jha | Chairman | Non- Executive & Independent Director
" Deepak Mittal | Member Managing Director




20. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to establish avigil mechanism for
Directors and employses of the Company te reporiconcerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violationof the Company’'s code of conduct or ethics policy. The
Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company.

21. Nominatioh and Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to provision of Section 178(1) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of
SEBI (Listing bbligation and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,2015. Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the company as on the date of this report constitute of following
members:

Name of the Status ~ Nature of directorship
director

' Abhay Kumar ' Chairman | Non-Executive & Independent

Director
Raman Kumar Sah Member | Non-Executive & Independent

‘ Director

Nivesh Kumar Jha | Member | Non-Executive & Independent
: Director

22.Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20
of SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) regulation 2015, Stakeholder
Relationship Committee of the company as on the date of this report is constituted of
following members:



" 'Name of | " Status Nature of
Director Directorship
Raman Kumar | "~ Chairman Non-Executive
Sah . & Independent
Director
. Deepak Mittal o Member Chairmen
&Managing
Director
'R'éj'paIVValia """" ~ Member Whole-Time
Director

23. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under section 186

During the year under review, the Company did not grant any loan or provide any guarantee
or made any investment in securities as per the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

24. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length-transactions under third proviso thereto are disclosed in Form No. ACC
-2 marked as Annexure-4.

25.Deposits

During the year L;fnder review, Company did not accept any deposits in terms of Section 73
and 74 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company did not have outstanding deposits at the beginning/ at
the end of the year.

26. Particulars of Employees:

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the
Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitied thereto,
excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the
Members at the Registered office of the Company during business hours on working days of
the Company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested
in inspecting the same, such Member may write to the Company Secretary in advance.



a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year;

Name of the Director | Yearly 1 Monthly

Mr. Deepak Mittal e ol2B28 1736 B
Mr. RajpalWalia - 26 28 - 17:36

| Mrs. Rakhi Mittal  |2s28 41736

by The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year,

Name of the person Percentage (%) Percentage (%)
_increase yearly increase monthly

Mr. Deepak Mittal - 140% 0%

Mr. RajpalWalia 300% ‘ 67%

Mrs. Rakhi Mittal o 1 140% ‘ 0%

SumitGoyal 1 ;

ArpanaNassa ) - o | -

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year,

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is
32.70% approximately.

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company;
Number of permanent employeeson the rolls of company as on 31/03/2018= 40

e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentiie increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point
out if ‘there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.

Average remuneration of employees (non-managerial} increased by 13.88%
(including the promotional increase) in FY'17 over previous year whereas for
managerial employees, the increase in FY' 17 over previous year is not
comparablefigure because of onboarding due to the listing of the company on Stock
exchange.

f} Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company

Affirmed that the remuneration declared and distributed to the employees and the
managerial personnel of the company is as per the remuneration policy of the
company.

f




g) Name of top ten employees of the companyin terms of remuneration drawn.

5. No. | Name of top ten employee's in terms of |
remuneration drawn.
) | NimmishChoudhary
) | Asha Gupta
)| Anshuman
} | ArunJhaldiyal
) | DevandraNedi
)

)

)

HariKishan Joshi
KartikWalia
RiteshDhiman
9) | SumitGoyal
10) | Vijay Sharma

h) Name of the employees:

i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees;

None of the employees was in receipt of remuneration for the year under review
which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees.

iy if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any
part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and
fifty thousand rupees per month;

None of the employeeswas in receipt of remuneration during any part of the year
under review, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and
fifty thgii’usand rupees per month.

iifif employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or
whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.

None of the employees throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt
of remuneration during the year under review, which, in the aggregate, or as the
case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is In excess of that drawn by the
managing director or whale-time director or manager and holds by himself or
along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the
equity shares of the company.



(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

31. Disclosure about cost audit

Provision given under section 148 of Companies Act,2013 and rule 14 of company (audit
and auditer) rules, 2014is not applicablein our cempany.

32.Conservation of enerqy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo

The provisions related to Conservation of Energy do not apply to our Company.

33. Internal financiai controls

The Board of your company has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

34. Details of amount received from directors or relative of directors pursuant to
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Details of amount received from directors or relative of directors pursuant to provisions of
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014 is as follows.

'S.No | Name of directorirelative | Nature of transaction Amount
of director
1. | Mr Deepak Mittal | Unsecured loan 4,33,094
TT277I'Mr RajpalWalia | Unsecured loan 6,809 -
3 | Smt. Rakhi Mittal ' Unsecured loan 70,964

e

35. Anti-sexual Harassment policy

The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its
women employees. To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dighity and
respect and as mandated under “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013" the Company has in place a formal policy
for prevention of sexual harassment at work place and the Company has also Constituted
the Internal Complaint Committee across all its locations in Compliance with the requirement
of the Act.

The Company has not received any Complaints on Sexual Harassment during the year.



36. Acknowledqemen'ts
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Annexure 1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS REPORT FOR THE E.Y. 2017-18.

Introduction

Our Company was incorporated as Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation:
I70102UR2013PLCOOO787dated July 12, 2013 in Haridwar, Uttrakhand. The Registered
office of the company situated at Nath House Devpura Haridwar, Uttarakhand, 249401 India.
It was listed on the platform of NSE-SME.

INTRODUCTION

2017-18 was a yéar of consolidation for the construction sector in India. Firmly entrenched
on the path to recovery, Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited focused on reducing its
financial leverage and driving the organisational change that aimed to deliver operational
robustness and sustained long-term profitability. Starting from 2018-19, with the required
financial and human resources in place, the Company seems well poised to witness a good
growth in execution of its sizeable order backlog.

MACROECONOMIC REVIEW

The Indian economy continues to be the fastest growing economy among all major
economies of the world. It continued to attract attention not only because of its current
performance, but also for expected realization of its latent potential on account of constant
structural reform push, consistent fiscal discipline and continuously improving macro factors,
While, the growth moderated from a spectacular 7.1% in financial year 2017 to 6.4% in
financial year 2018 and it will be accelerate further in financial year 2019 to 7.8% mainly on
account of suppressed private investment and measures such as surprise demonetization of
high value specmed bank notes aimed at curtailing informal economy. However, impact of
demonetization oh the economic activity was transient and not as adverse as expected by
many noted economists. With near complete demonetization, normal monsoon forecast,
recovery in global economy, exuberant financial markets, and further reform push in the form
of GST implementation, aggressive divestment and trade liberalization, the gconomy is
projected to grow in Financial year 2019 at a rate between 7.8%-8.0% by leading public and
financial institutions.



After three years of over 7% growth, the Indian economy slowed down slightly in 2017-18
recording 6.4% growth in real gross value added (GVA). Despite this slowdown, the
economy continues to remain one of the fastest growing among major global economies

Pie-Chart.: Real GVA Growth, India
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% 2017-18

Note: Real GVA growth in basic prices. 2017-18 are advance eslimales Source: Ministry of
Statistics and Programme Implementation (MOSPY), Government of India.

From a global perspective, however, there are certain concerns. First, under stress from
worsening domestic economic conditions, there are growing protectionist tendencies in
some countries especially the USA, and it remains to be seen as to how the situation
unfolds. Second, average crude oil (Indian basket) prices have risen by around 14% in 2017-
18 compared to 2016-17. Going by the recent trends, the average crude oil prices, which
was around US$ 56-57 per barrel in 2017-18 could rise further by another 10% to 15% in
2018-18. These factors could have a dampening effect to global economic growth.

India is also going through a difficult phase related to its banks and non-performing assets
(NPA). The latest Reserve Bank of India (RBI) estimates in September 2017 suggests that
gross NPA was * 9 lakh crore, which is 10.5% of the banking assets with restructured assets
being an incrqf‘nental " 1.3 lakh crore. Further, a report by the credit rating agency, CARE,
shows that, fromh a global perspective, India was fifth-worst in terms of bad loans in the
system, measured as the ratio of NPA to cutstanding loans (see chart below ;)
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Note: All data for Q2, 2017 except Russia (Q1, 2017) and UAE (Q3, 2017) Source: CARE
report stating IMF data. ; :

In a major development on February 12, 2018, the RBI withdrew a host of res—tructuring
schemes such as 525, Strategic Debt Restructuring {SDR), Scheme for Sustainable
Structuring of Stressed Assets (S4A) and Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR). Instead, the
RBI has insisted on capturing early stress on loan accounts immediately in the event of a
default.

While this new instance of the RBI will doubtiess add transparency about stressed accounts,
a proportion of banking assets under the various restructuring schemes that have been
withdrawn by the central bank could run the risk of becoming NPAs. Moreover, unless this
move is backed by concurrent addition of resources for provisioning or capital infusion, it
may create more confusion among the lenders and borrowers alike. Therefore, it is
imperative that all stakeholders, under the aegis of the RBI, evolve a cohesive and
synchronized joint plan regarding the extent of provisioning and capital required and its
mode of funding. In the interim, the present uncertain regulatory environment coupled with
the increasing revelations and on-going probes into frauds and aliegations of improprieties
against bankers is denting credit availability in the economy.

In summary, therefore, though India's GDP and GVA growth witnessed a slowdown in 2017-
18 compared to the three earlier years, it is still in a fairly healthy state. Growth in public
investments has created a fillip for infrastructure and also increased the ratio of gross
domestic capital formation - for the first fime over the last five years. There are concerns
regarding the NPA overhang and the possibility of a widening current account deficit due to
rising crude oil prices. Equally, greater stability in operationalizing the GST regime in India,
likely recovery in investments and a continued commitment to fiscal prudence augur well for
the economy. The RBI has pegged GDP growth for 2018-19 at 7% of GDP. Pushpanjali
Realms and Infratech Limited believe that such a growth rate will be realized, and that a
stage could be set for 7.3% to 7.5% growth in 2019-20.

1.Industry Structure,Developments & Overview of the economy:

tndia will continu\é, to benefit from low global commodity prices which have helped rein in
inflation and encé:urage consumer spending. Focus on urbanization, smart city program and
improvement in infrastructure along with implementation of policy reforms to iron out the
regulatory issues in the area of taxes and approval related functions need to be prioritized by
the government. This will encourage private sector investment, creating the platform to
utilize the country's advantageous demographic potential and lay the foundations for real
GDP growth to move to higher levels.

Incian real estate sector is one of the maost globally recognized sectors. In the country, it is
the 2nd largest employer after agricuiture and is slate to grow at a massive pace over the
next decade. The growth of this sector is well compiemented by the growth of the corporate
environment and the demand of office space as well as urban and semi urban
accommodations. The Governments Smart City development approach will further boost the
growth of the sector. Various ancillary industries such as cement, steel, brick, timber,
puilding materials etc. are dependent on the real estate industry. India has huge potential to
attract large foreign investments into real estate. With real estate reaching point of saturation
in developed countries and the demand and prices falling, global real estate players are
looking at emerging economies such as india for tapping opportunities in real estate. Indian
real estate will stay attractive due to its strong economic fundamentals and demographic



factors. The steps taken by the Union Government are in the right direction. The underlying
purpose of RERA is to bring transparency and information to the consumer, timely delivery,
and financial discipline in management of customer advances. Demonetisation will reduce
black money in real estate transactions and therefore reduce unscrupulous deals. RERA
coupled with demonetization will make buying and selling homes transparent and easier.
The industry will ultimately become more organized and better regulated. The major reform
and development take- place during the year, the introduction of a new tax reform namely
Goods and Services Tax which replace the duplicity of taxes and removes the cascading
effect to make the uniform tax structure in the economy. The GST will subsume central
excise, service tax, VAT and other local levies to create a uniform market. GST is expected
to boost GDP. growth by about 2 per cent and check tax evasion. States will have to pass
their State GST or SGST law that will allow them to levy sales tax after levies like VAT are
subsumed.

Current real estate transaction taxes

Bengaluru Mumbai Pune Chennai Gurugram
VAT 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 2.0% 4.0%
‘Service Tax 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
Stamp Duty 57% 5.0% 5.0% 7.0% 6.0%
Registration Charges  1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.5%
Total Taxation 15.2% 11.5% 11.5% 14.5% 15.0%

Source: Industry, JM Financial (these are the estimates)

Impact of GST on real estate

The construction of a complex building, civil structure, or a part thereof, intended for sale to a
buyer, wholly or partly, is subject to 12 per cent tax with full input tax credit (ITC), subject to
no refund in c_fESIe of overflow of ITC. in other words, residential construction services, will
invite GST at the rate of 12 per cent, which will apply to developers selling residential units
before completion of construction to the home buyers.

According to the JM Financial report on GST, for states with non-composite VAT (Karnataka,
Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh), the transaction value changes marginally from 10-11% to
12% under the new regime. With input cost credits available, developers in these regions
may witness improvement in margins in case no price revision takes place (subject to the
anti-profiteering clause).

In the current regime, states with composite VAT require developers to pay lower VAT rates
on the total property value without any input tax benefit (Maharashtra, Haryana) or partial
benefit (intra state offset- Bangalore). Under this regime, developers pass on the transaction
cest — VAT (1%) and service tax (4-5%) tc buyers (total 5-6%). Developers get offset for only
the input service tax component. In the GST regime, the transaction cost increases to 12%,
with input credit available on both, services and material. Property transaction costs will
increase by 6%, in case no input credit is passed on by developers. If developers pass on
the input credit to buyers, the property price increase could be restricted to 1-2%." If the



developers pass on the credits completely and bring down the base prices, then, home
buyers may marginally benefit under the GST regime.

Nevertheless, stamp duty will continue to be applicable, irrespective of whether the property
is under-construction or constructed, in the pre-GST and post-GST regime.

Finance Minister Mr. Arun Jaitley presented Budget 2018 in Parliament on Thursday. Budget
2018 was majorly focused on agriculture and farmers, but announcements for the affordable
housing sector pleased the real estate sector too. The real estate sector sees Union Budget
2018 as a balanced one with focus on affordable housing. However, Union Budget 2018 will
not have any direct impact on the sector as the expectations of concessional GST for
housing sector overall was not met, said real estate experts.

Finance minister Mr. Arun Jaitley, while delivering a fecture at Harvard University on October
12, 2017, has said that the real estate sector should, ideally, be brought under the ambit of
the Goods and Seyvices Tax (GST). "The one sector in India, where maximum amount of tax
evasion and cash generation takes place and which is still outside the GST, is real estate.
Some of the states have been pressing for it | personally believe that there is a strong case
to bring real estate into the GST”. The finance minister said the move would benefft
consumers, as they will only have lo pay one final tax on the whole product. “As a resull, the
final tax paid on the whole product under the GST, would almost be negligible”

However, the goal of housing for all by 2022 is quite on the track as the government is
planning to build one crore houses under PMAY (Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana) and will also
setting up a dedicated housing fund under the NHB for priority sector lending. The demand
will also escalate as the home buyers will be provided with the ease of credit for aspirational
or affordable homes. The mission of building smart city is another step in the right direction
and will effectively influence the demand for housing in times to come.

Notwithstanding the structural problems in many large economies, geopolitical tensions, and
rising nationalist sentiments in United States and some European countries, the world
econamy is likely to be in befter shape in financialyear 2018-19 vis-a-vis Financial year
2017-18. ‘

The Indian growt‘% story however has some major challenges to overcome. The biggest of
them being the level of non-performing assets (NPAs) and stressed corporate balance
sheets that have put a long pause on the private investment cycle by holding back credit
growth. Both private and public sector banks are saddled with NPAs, and are either too
cautions in leading or unable to do so due to justified restrictions. Reserve Bank of india's
drive to clean —up the sector by recognizing the problem through revision in NPA
recognition, provision and capital adequacy norms has put this problem in glaring spotlight.
The Indian government is also creating enabling environment to address the problem by
passing an ordinance to directly empower RBI to deal with NPA problem and the bankruptcy
act.



2. Opportunities:

The real estate sector is currently passing through a transformational phase and the
yearMay, 2017 which was one of the most defining years in the history of the sector. The
must awaited remaining provisions of RERA has come into force and this marks the
beginning of a new era. In the last few years, the real estate seclor has been battling a
perception of distrust and lack of customer confidence, mainly on account of delayed
delivery of projects. With implementation of RERA, it is largelyexpected to bring
transparency in the real state sector, which will benefit not just the end user but alse the
sector itself. It may well pave the way for the revival of the sector.

Indeed there are a lot of questions laced with anxiety. Will 2018 be a better time to invest in
real estate? After a slowdown in 2017, will real estate be back on track in 2018? The year
2017 had set an unexpected precedent. It saw a 30% drop in the number of units sold as
compared to 2016.

With demonetization in the later 2016 reducing the availability of cash. along with GST and
RERA, the real estate section experienced tension amongst buyers and sellers alike.
Although, it saw a change in the attitude of the buyers preferring well-known developers at a



premium, and a greater demand for 2 & 3 BHK homes, yet buyers were holding back
purchases in anticipation of final RERA notifications.

Experts believe that the year 2018 will witness a new transitional phase for real estate in
India. The market is expected to show a sign of improvement, for the sector is becoming
more buyers friendly with newer reforms. In that pretext, let us dive into the three significant
guestions for 2018.

The Company believes that there are lots of opportunities and demand in Indian Real Estate
Sector. Some of them are as under:

% Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs): The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 facilitate tapping of cash low in
the Indian economy, and help smaller investors access income-generating real
estate assets.

% Smart cities: Government proposal to develop smart cities, to offer sustainable
developmént and employment to a wider section, regardless of skill, education, or
income level.

<+ Relaxation in rules for foreign direct investment in the sector. Some of these relaxed
rules include reducing minimum built-up area and capital requirement for the projects
receiving FDI.

< Economic activity is gradually picking up.

< Office rents to start appreciating.

% Increase in Floor Area Ratio by the Department of Town & Country planning,
Haryana.

4 More internationat retailers to venture into India, which would result in high demands.

# The company has carved a hiche for itself in the luxury and uitra-luxury segment by

differentiating itself in each micro-market through product positioning for each
product to attract customers.

> Home loans will become cheaper.

< Goods and Service Tax will increasingly formalize the economy and the industry

% Reduction in holding period: The holding period for capital gains on sale of
immovable property—and and building—to qualify as long term capital gains {LTCG)
is proposéd to be reduced to 2 years from 3 years in the Union Budget 2017. These
steps are expected to reduce the capital gains tax burden on property sellers and
thereby make movement of immovable capital easier. Investors who were holding on
to properties will benefit from this reduction in tenure.

4 The Union Budget 2018 has proposed a lower corporate tax rate of 25 per cent on
companies with an annual turnover of up to Rs 2.5 billion. As the tax rate earlier was
30 per cent, this would give a massive boost to the small-and-medium-sized
companies that were facing the brunt of demonetisation and goods and service tax.
The government said it will forego Rs 70 billion (Rs 7,000 crore) of revenue due to
the move.

4+ Government is doing its best to help boost the reasonaple housing’ segment through

credit linked subsidy schemes. It accompanies a 4% subsidy, as it deducts one-third

of the amount charged for the house towards the cost of land.

After the dip in real estate prices in 2017, residential prices are expected to remain for the
most part stable over the following couple of months. As envisaged, there hasn’t been a
huge plunge in costs to the extent that the primary market is worried. The year 2018 is
probably not going to portray any value increase, nonetheless, expeils believe that the

Y



current changes will boost the trust and certainty 'of the home buyers and the sales are
probably going to rise in 2018

With everything taken into account, the year 2018 will remain a decent time to purchase. It is
normal that the market will see more afternatives in ready stock since more number of
project completions are expected. As of now, there has been a lack of new project launches
because of the infroduction of RERA, which could negatively affect the supply of land or real
estate properties.

This year's budget was expected to have higher spending compared to Union Budget
2017. Another major expectation was the increased spending in rural development and
infrastructure. Both these expectations have come true in this budget. Some of the
sector wise beneficiaries of the budget can be listed as follows:

Sectors 2017-18 2018-19

Rurat development Rs.1.35 lakh crore Rs.1.38 lakh crore

&

Agriculturé and allied

T Rs.56,589 crore Rs.63,836 crore
activities

Subsidy for fertilizer Rs.64,974 crore Rs.70,080 crare

Besides, the government has also taken some measures to revive the sector, which includes
providing infrastructure status to affordable housing. extending the benefits of Pradhan
Mantri Awaas Yojana(PMAY) to larger section of the people by offering interest subsidy,
redefining criteria of 'Affordable Housing' etc. The budget allocation to Infrastructure
investments estimated to be in excess of Rs.50 lakh crore. It is expected that all measures
put togetherwill boost the demand for affordable housing, particularly in Tier | and Il cities,

According to several estimates, India has a housing shortage, a reason due to which the
government has initiated ‘Housing for All by 2022', which envisages developing 20 million
housing units in the urban area-mainly tier Il and tier 1l cities. ‘



Government initiatives around ‘Smart City’, Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban
Transformation (AMRUT), etc. for development of urban infrastructure are also likely to
favour increase in demand for both residential and commercial properties. Co- working or
Community Working spaces have mushroomed across metros and Tier-ll cities, providing
flexible working options at affordable rents. With some of the operators running at 100%
occupancy levels, the supply of such spaces is very limited at the moment, against a
significantly higher demand on account of cost efficiency, flexibility and proximity benefits.

REITs and 100% FDI in complete projects are likely to attract international institutional
investors, who are in pursuit of Grade-A income yielding leased commercial assets. While
large funds like Blackstone pioneered this trend, many others such as Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (CPPIB), Maple Tree, Tishman Speyer and Morgan Stanley have followed
suit.

3.Threats, Risk énd concerns:
a) External factor,

While the internal consumption story remains intact, notwithstanding the temporary blip due
to demonetization, the Indian Economy is vuinerable to market risk from adverse
developments in the global scenario. These downside risks to the positive global economic
growth such as trade protectionism, structural issues, commaodity stocks,etc. could impact
market statement and income growth, hurting real estate as well.

Real estate is an interest sensitive sector; hence any increase in rates affected by the
reserve Bank will impact the performance of the sector.Even though this is unlikely because
of the low CPI and tepid industry growth, any reversal in monetary policy direction is going to
dent sector's prospectus. This will not affect the customers demand, but also impact cost of
funds for the industry.

Regulatory overhaul and botched implementation related to RERA, GST, etc. Have the
potential to cause temporary setbacks for the economy and sectoral performance in the
short term to medium term.
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Increase labour cost and non- availability, especially of skilled manpower, on account of
MGNREGA are a threat to industry’s growth since could lead to delayed and unprofitable
project executions.

b) Internal factor:

Some of the internal factors are as under:

s,

*+ Unanticipated delays in project approvais.

’,

* Un-stability in the government golicies.

“ Environmental issues.

% Rising.cost of construction such as steel, cement, power etc.

% Rise in competition.

% Increase in Input costs.

% Reduction in supply -~ RERA and demonetization will have a midterm effect on
reduction of supply.

% Lower ‘iiquidity likely to impact demand, construction progress and secondary market
transactions.

¢+ Increase in Interest costs and foreign currency rates.

%+ Regulatory Pressure: Like in 2017, developers will have to confront the effect of
RERA by concentrating on finishing the on-geing projects. As the supply of ready-to-
move-in properties will expand, builders will confront the challenge of finishing the
task on a specified due date.

% Rising Input Cost: The real estate industry is both capital and labour intensive.
Labour availability, unstable price fluctuations in concrete industry and other
dependent industry impacts the rea! estate industry significantly.

% GST Rate: 2018 has seen clarity on GST in the real estate industry. There is no GST

for completed, ready to move in properties, properties for which completion certificate

has beenissued, and for resale of properties.

Home Loan Interest Limit: The rising of the home loan interest limit from 2 lakhs for

one financial year fo 5 lakhs will make the purchase of home very attractive to

individuals. It will increase the demand for homes as consumers will save more on

taxes. ,

»,
T

In the long te“;'m‘ the demonetization along with implementation of Real Estate Regulation
Act and single-window.

Clearance system will be positive for the sector leading to higher transparency and investors'
confidence Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and
investors should not invest any funds in this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of
losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the Risk Factors carefully before taking
an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely
on their own examination of our Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The
Equity Shares offered in the Issue have not been recommended or approved by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or
adequacy of this Prospectus.
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4. Financial Performance:

Despite high volatility and uncertainty, the company’s diversified offerings helped it in
boosting the sale sin these regions and overall as well. Built-up area accounted for larger per
cent of overall sales as compared to plots. The commercial spaces aiso contributed to
substantial sales.

The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable laws for the time being in force and Indian
GAAP and restated in accordance with ther SEBI ICDR Regulations, including the schedules,
annexure and notes thereto and the reports thereon, included in “Financial Statements”
Indian GAAP differs in certain material respects from U.S. GAAP and IFRS. We have nct
attempted to quantify the impact of IFRS or U.S.

Qur results of operations and financial conditions are affected by numerous factors including
the following:

» Fluctuation in price of Raw Material.
» Company'’s results of operations and financial performance.
« Performance of Company’s competitors.

« Changes, if any, in the regulations / regulatory framework / economic policies in India and /
or in foreigncountries, which affect national & international finance.

+ Significant developments in India's environmental regulations.

& Total Revenue from operations: The total revenue of the company during
Financial year 2018stood at Rs.29,67,95,103 up for 15.45% as compared to Rs.
25,70,78,851 in Financial year 2017.

N EBIDTA;g‘For Financial year 2018 EBIDTA stood at Rs.7,65,23,836vis-a-vis Rs.
4,06,25,680 in Financial year 2017.

<+ Profit before tax: Profit before tax for Financial year 2018 stood at Rs
7,07,15,089as compared to Rs.3,64,96,026in Financial year 2017.

& Profit after tax: Profit after tax for financial year 2018 stood at Rs. 4,87,40,609 as
compared to Rs. 2,41,21,833 in Financial year 2017.

4 Net worth: The company's Net worth as on March 31%, 2018 stood at
Rs.32,62,77,933



5.Internal Control System

Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited has well-equipped adequate systems and internal
controls to properly monitor all business transactions, records and reporting for different
projects under execution. This process also ensure compliances with all applicable rules and
regulations at corporate and projects tevels. The system also keeps a close eye to ensure
that unauthorized use of assets is checked. The Internal Control teams, comprising of
professionally trained internal audit team, comprising of professionally trained internal audit
team, inform the management of only, regulatory changes and also monitors the response
from various new launches. The internal audits carried out by the company's auditors.

Further, it has an adequate system of internal control to ensure that all resources of the
Company are used efficiently and effectively, all assets are safeguarded and protected
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are authorised,
recorded and reported correctly, financial and other data are reliable for preparing financial
information and other data and for maintaining accountability of assets. The internal contro!
is supplemented by extensive programme of internal audits, review by management,
documented policies, guidelines and procedures.

6. Material Developments in Human Resources

Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited has proud of its vibrant pool of young and
energetic people working as one impeccable team Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech
Limited. It is of the view that a satisfied employee is the greatest strength of any company,
as they are the store for organization capabilities and medium of delivering superlative
customer experiences. Transparency in working, open communication and enabling work
environment are the key intrinsic values of the company""s work culture. Investment in
enhancing capabilities of the work place challenges and incentive schemes for achievers go
a long way in keeping our employees motivated to perform their best Focus and commitment
towards these human resources principles have helped Pushpanjali Realms and infratech
Limited deliver excellent performance year-after-year.

7.0utlook

.
;

The companyfhas several on-going projects in Tier-il and Tier-1l cities and many mare in the
pipeline. The "br'ojects have the potential to change the landscape of the cities. Our portfolio
consists of both the small and large sized projects, offering complete solution to our
customers from ready to move in to under construction projects. We remain confident about
our existing projects.

We shall be speeding up construction of our existing projects and continue to focus on timely
delivery, which remains our greatest strengths. Our cash position remains comfortable and
so does our debt. Hence, it provides us cushion to undertake new launches at the
appropriate times. Our net margins are likely to be positively impacted by the tax incentives
declared by government for Affordable Housing segments.

We believe that government's focus on Smart City, Housing for All by 2022, AMRUT,
accompanied by ever —increasing urbanization, will continue to provide ample scope of
growth for the Company. RERA implementation , infrastructure tag for affordable Housing
segment and other reforms are expected to turn the tide for the sector |, and with our
reputation as one of the most trusted and respected company in the real estate sector , we



are well-placed to benefit from likely uptick in the sector. We also remain committed towards
enhancing the value of our stakeholders.

Statements in this report on Management Discussions and Analysis describing the
Company's objectives, estimates and expectations may be forward looking statements
based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. Actual results might differ
substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. The Company assumes no
responsibility nor is under any obligation to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward
looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.
This report should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein and
the notes thereto.

8. Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be forward looking statements’
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ
substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that
could affect the Company's operations include a downtrend in the infrastructure and the
construction sector, significant changes in political and economic environment in India,
exchange rate fluctuations, tax laws, litigation, labour relations and interest costs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pushpanjali Reaims And Infratech Limited

Deepak Mitta!
(Managing Director)
DIN: 01616201

R/IO: 1/1 A Teg Bahadur
- Road Dehradun-248001
Uttarakhand, Indig
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Annexure 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2017-18

1. Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited Philosophy on code of Corporate
Governance.

Our Company is committed to excellence in Corporate Governance practices and
recognizes that good Corporate Governance is a continuous exercise. Corporate
Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's
affairs are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and
faimess in all transactions in the widest sense. The objective is to meet stakeholders’
aspirations and societal expectations. Good govermance practices stem from the dynamic
culture and positive mindset of the organization. We are committed to meet the aspirations
of all our stakeholders.

The Governance framework gives due importance towards regulatory compliance under the
guardianship of a strong Board of Directors and executed by a committed management.
Given below is a brief report by the Director(s} on the practices followed at Pushpanjali
Realms And Infratech Limited to strive towards achievement of goal of Good 'Corporate
Governance'.

Appropriate Governance Structure with defined roles and responsibilities:

The Company has put in place internal governance structure with defined roles and
responsibilities of every constituent of the system. The Company's Shareholders appoint the
Board of Directors, which in turn governs the Company. The Board has established various
Committees to discharge its responsibilities in an effective manner..

Ethics/Governance Policies

At Our Company, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships in a
manner that is dignified, distinctive and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards te
ensure integrity, transparency, independence and accountability in dealing with all
stakeholders.

Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out our duties in an ethical
manner. Some of these codes and policies are:

.,

< Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Management Level.
< Prohibition of Insider Trading policy.

< Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy.
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 Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party
Transactions.

< Policy for making payment to Non-executive Directors.

« Nomination and Remuneration Policy.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Composition of the Board of Directors conforms to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with strength of Six Directors and comprises
of 3 Non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors, 1 Managing Director, 1 Whole Time
director and 1 Executive Directors also include 1 Chief Financial Officer and 1 Company
Secretary. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and
Chairman of mare than 5 committees across all companies in which he is a Director.

(a) Non - Executive Directors.

Mr. Abhay Kumar (DIN: 07506524) aged 31 years, is Non-Executive & Independent Director
of our Company. He has held Post Graduate Diploma in Financial Management,
International Business Operation & Management. He is having experience of over 4 years in
the demain of Legal, Secretarial & Corporate matters.

Mr. Raman Kumar Sah (DIN: 07750890) aged 32 years, is Non-Executive & Independent
Director of our Company. He is a associated Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAl). He is having experience of over 3 Years of post-qualification
professional experience.

Mr. Nivesh Kumar Jha (DIN; 07770324) aged 26 years, is Non-Executive & Independent
Director of our Company. He is an associated Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). He has experience in the domain of Finance, Taxation,
Accounting, Financial statements and other matters.
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(b) Managing Director:

Mr. Deepak Mittal (DIN: 01616201) aged 41 years is the Promoter and Managing Director of
our Company. He is a Graduate in B.com. He is having experience of over 11 years in
Hospitality Industry and Real Estate Industry. He has experience in marketing, strategies,
implementation of project and finance and other corporate matters.

(c) Whole Time Director and Executive Director:

Mr. Rajpal Walia (DIN: 06829234) aged 50 years, is the Promoter and Whole Time Director
of our Company. He has done his Bachelor of Arts (B. A) from D. A. V. (PG) Collage,
Dehradun. He has an experience of more than 12 years in Hospitality Industry and Real
Estate Industry.

Mrs. Rakhi Mittal (DIN: 02531999) aged 40 years, is the Executive Director of our Company.

She has done his Bachelor of Arts (B.A) from Hemwati Nandan Bahuguna Garhwal
University in 1999. She holds an experience of more than 8 years in Real Estate Industry
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She has started her career from Rasayana Infra Design Private Limited as Director
thereafter she joined Pushpanjali Realms and infratech Private Limited in 2013. She looks
after HR & Administration of the Company.

(d) Independent & Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Abhay Kumar, Mr. Raman Kumar Sah and Mr. Nivesh Kumar Jha, are Independent &
Non-Executive Directors of the Company’since 23" day of February, 2017.

(e) Meetings

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year Nine Board meetings were held and the intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, The dates on
which the Board Meetings were held are:

Serial no. | Date of Board Meeting Name of director who attend Board Meeting
i 31055017 FRiin S

Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah
Nivesh Kumar Jha

OO AW N

2. 06/05/2017 Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah

Nivesh Kumar Jha

¢

D O W=

3. 03/07/2017 Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah

Nivesh Kumar Jha

DA W=

4, 30/08/2017 Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah

Nivesh Kumar Jha

O G W




5. 16/1012017 -

oGk N~

6. 11/11/2017

o U AN~

Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah
Nivesh Kumar Jha

" Deepak Mittal

Rakhi Mittal
Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar

Raman Kumar Sah’

Nivesh Kumar Jha

7. 11/12/2017

OO A WN

Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah
Nivesh Kumar Jha

8. 17/01/2018

SRS REE SRR

Deepak Mittal

Rakhi Mittal

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah
Nivesh Kumar Jha

9. 29/03/2018

Dok wN -~

f) Meetings of Independent Directors:

Deepak Mittal
Rakhi Mitta!

Rajpal Walia
Abhay Kumar
Raman Kumar Sah
Nivesh Kumar Jha

In compliance with requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder, during the year, one Meeting of Independent Directors was held. Such
meeting was conducted informally to enable Independent Directors to discuss matters
pertaining to review the performance of non-Independent Directors and the board as a
whole, to review the performance of the chairperson of the company, to assess the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information and other matters relating to Company's affairs.
The Lead Independent Director takes appropriate steps to Present Independent Directors’

views to the Chairman of the Company.

The date on which the Independent Directors Meetings was held as:

e




‘Serialno. | Date of Independent

Directors Meeting Name of director whg attend the Meeting

Kl 0770212018 |1 Abhay Kumar
2. Nivesh Kumar Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah

g) Familiarization Programmed/Training to Independent Directors:

To familiarize the new Independent Directors with the strategy, operations and functions of
our Company, the Executive Directors/Senior Managerial Personnel make presentations to
the Directors about the Company's strategy, operations, service offerings, markets,
organization structure, finance and risk management.

Further at the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal
letter of appointment outlining histher and also describe their role, function, duties and
responsibilities as an Independent Director.

h) Code of Conduct for Board Members and Independent Directors:

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct (the Code) applicable to all
the Directors including Independent Directors and all the Members of senior Management.
The Code is applicable to Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors to such
extent as may be applicable to them depending on their roles and responsibilities. The Code
gives guidance and support needed for ethical cenduct of business and compliance of law.
The Company has adopted the code of conduct as per the Regulation 17¢5) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Discourse Requirements) Regulations 2015. A copy of the Code has been
put on the Company's website (www.pushpanjali.co). The Code has been circulated to
Directors and Management Personnel, and its compliance is affirmed by them annually.

i) Disclosures of relationship between direcfors, inter-se;

& Mr. Deé'p_ak Kumar Mittal, who is the Promoter and Managing Director of the
compan\i/, is a husband of Mrs. Rakhi Mittal, who is an Executive Director of the
Company.

J) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive director:
There are NIL number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive director.
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory
requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of

Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discourse Requirements) Regulations 2015.

The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows.



NAME OF . STATUS NATURE OF DIRECTORSHIP
DIRECTOR
Raman Kumar Sah |~ Member | Non- Executive & Independent Director
Nivesh Kumar Jha Chairperson | Non- Executive & Independent Director
Deepak Mittal - Member Managing Director

The Audit Committee of the Board, inter alia, provides reassurance to the Board on the
existence of an effective internal financial control environment that ensures.

. Efficiency and effectiveness of operation.

. Safeguarding of assets and adequacy of operation.

. Reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of
disclosure;

. Compliance with all relevant statutes.

The date on which the Audit committee Meetings was held as:

Serial no. | Date of Audit committee | Name of persons who attend the Meeting
Meeting )
1. 17/07/2017 1. Deepak Mittal
2. Nivesh Kumr Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah
2. 16/10/2017 1. Deepak Mittal
2. Nivesh Kumr Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah
3. 24/11/2017 o 1. Deepak Mittal
2. Nivesh Kumr Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah
z 15/07/2018 7 Deepak Mittal
o 2. Nivesh Kumr Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah
5. 23/02/2018 1. Deepak Mittal
2. Nivesh Kumr Jha
3. Raman Kumar sah

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee included the following:

The terms of reference of the Audit Commitiee are wide enough to cover the matters
specified for Audit Committee under Regulation 18 of SEB! (Listing Obfigation and
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013and
the rules and regulations made thereunder:

1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and
credible. :




10.

11.

16.

17.

18.

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appoiniment and, if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with thehmanagement, the annual financial statements before submission
to the board for approval, with particular reference to.

Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to the board for approval

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and
effectiveness of audit process

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditars,
adequacy of the internat control systems.

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussior;f with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on.

‘Rewewing‘ the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board.

_Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, sharehalders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same exists.
Approval of appointment of CFC or any other person heading the finance function or

discharging that function after assessing the qualifications, experience & background,
etc. of the candidate.

_To overview the Vigil Mechanism of the Gompany and took appropriate actions in

case of repeated frivolous complaints against any Director or Employee.
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The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1.

2.

Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee), submitted by management.

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors.

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor
shall be subject to review by the audit committee

Statemem of deviations:

a) Half yearly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1)

b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

The Audit Committee shall have following powers:

D
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» Investigating any activity within its terms of reference;

Seeking information from any employee;

+  Obtaining outside legal or other professional advice; and

» Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNARATION COMNHTTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with
the requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D
of Schedule 1] ¢f SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discourse Requirements) Regulations 2015.

The Compositibﬁ of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows -

Name of the director Status Nature of directorship

Abhay Kumar Chairmen Non-Executive & Independent
Director

Raman Kumar Sah ‘Member " | Non-Executive & Independent
Director

Nivesh Kumar Jha Member Non-Executive & Independent
Director

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has following terms of reference:

1.

To determine Remuneration Policy of the Company;

2. Torecommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of salary, perquisites,

sitting fees, commission, stock opticns, sweat equity or in a combination thereof or



otherwise, payable to the Managing Director(s), Whole-time Director(s) and other
Directors, their relatives engaged in the employment of the Company;

To recommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of salary, perquisites.
commission, retainership fee or otherwise, payable to Directors for discharging the
professional or other services otherwise than in the capacity of Director,

To frame policies and compensation including salaries, incentives, bonhuses,
promotion, benefits, stock options, and performance targets for executives of the
Company,

Formulation of the criteria for dstermining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; The
Committee . while formulating the policy, shall ensure that a. the level and
composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; b.
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; ¢. remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel
and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of
the Company and its goals.

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
Devising a policy on Board diversity,

identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal.

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant o the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Reguiation 17 & 25 of SEBI
(Listing C:szligations and Discourse Requirements) Regulations 2015 and Guidance
Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India vide
its circular dated 5 January 2017, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
devised criteria for evaluation of the performance of Directors including Independent
Directors.

The Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, its Committees and Directors. The exercise was led by Lead
Independent Director. The evaluation process focused on various aspects of the
Board and Committees functioning such as composition of the Board and
Committees, experience and competencies, performance of specific duties and
obligations, corporate governance & compliance management etc. Separate exercise
was carfied out to evaluate the performance of Non-executive Directors on
parameters such as experience, attendance, acquaintance with the business,
effective participation, vision and strategy, contribution and independent judgment.



5.) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTCRS

The guiding principles for the Company’s remuneration policies are infer-alia as follows:

e The level and composition of remuneration is competitive, reasenable and
aligned to market practices and trends to attract, retain and motivate talent
required to run the Company successfully and ensure long-term sustainability
of the Company;,

* The remuneration has a fair balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals;

e The remuneration is linked to key deliverables, appropriate performance
benchmarks and metrics and varies with performance and athicvements;

e Alignment of performance metrics with business plans and strategy, corporate
performance targets and interest with stakeholders;

« Quantitative and qualitative assessments of performance are used to making
informed judgments to evaluate performances;

« Sufficientty flexible to take into account future changes in industry and
compensation practice; and

¢ The pay takes into account both external market and Company conditions to
a balanced ‘fair’ outcome.

During the year, there were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the
Company and any of its Non-Executive Directors apart from sitting fees and commission.
The Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Non-Executive Independent
Directors.

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the
sector/industry/company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration.

{ndependent Directors ("ID") and Non-Independent Non- Executive Directors ("NED") may
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which they
may be members) and commission within regulatory limits. Quantum of sitting fees may be
subject to revie\f/v on a periodic basis, as required.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be
recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into
consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).
Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.

Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognised best practices.

The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the
NRC to the Board based on Company's performance, profiis, return to investors,
shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be
decided by the Board.

The NRC will recommend to the Board, the quantum of commission for each Director based
upon the outcome of the evaluation pracess which is driven by various factors including



attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at
the meetings and contributions made by Directors other than in meetings.

In addition 1o the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director such
fair and reasonable expendiiure, as may have been incurred by the Director while
performing histher role as a Director of the Company. This could include reasonable
expenditure incurred by the Director for attending Board/Board committee meetings, general
meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/creditors/ management,
site visits, induction and training (organized by the Company for Directors) and in obtaining
professional advice from independent advisers in the furtherance of his/her duties as a
director.

The details of remuneration paid to the Directors of the company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2018 are provided hereinafter:
(In lacs Rs.)

Name | Salaryand | Bonus | Perquisites Pension Total
allowances (Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.)
{Rs.)
Mr. Deepak | 60 60 |
Mittal
Mr. mFiajbé‘l TTTe0 T e - - 80
Walia
Mrs.  Raknmi| 60 |- |- 60
Mittal
“Sumit Goyal | 1014776 | - 10. 11776
(CFO)
Arpana | 3.8 - I 3.9
Nassa
(Company
9401776 | — — e 194.01776

e
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6.) STAKEHOL?YDERS' GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE

The stakeholders' Grievances committee comprises of -

‘Name of Director | Status Nature of |
Directorship
"Raman Kumar Sah “Chairperson Non-executive &

Independent Director.

Deepak Mittal | Member Managing Director.

Rajpal Walia | Member Whole-Time Director.

R



< Carrying out any cther function as prescribed under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Redressal of Investor Grievances:

The Company addresses all complaints, grievances and other correspondence expeditiously
and replies are sent usually within 7-10 days except in case of legal impediments and non-
availability of documents. The Comparty endeavors to implement suggestions as and when
received from the investors. During the year under review, no complaints were received
and resolved. | '

Compliance Officer:

Ms. Arpana Nassa, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

7). GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The location, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings were as under:

Nature of | Date and Time Venue Special
Meeting resolutions
o | passed
Second Annual | Tuesday 29" [ Nath  House, Devpura, | None
General September, 2015 | Haridwar, Uttarakhand-
Meeting at 11:00 A.M 249401 india
Third  Annual | Tuesday 20" I Nath  House, Devpura, | None
General September, 2016 | Haridwar, Uttarakhand-
Meeting at 11:00 AM 249401 India
Fourth Annud! | Thursday 28" [ Hotel Himgiri Residency | None
General % | September, 2017 | Haridwar ~ Main  road,
Meeting at 10.00 A.M Shikhu  Pur,  Devpura
Haridwar-249401,
Uttarakhand, India,

8.) Means of Communication:

The half yearty and annual audited financial results on significant developments in the
Company including presentations that have been made from time to time to the media,
institutional  investors & analysts are posted on the Company's website
www.pushpanjali.co and are submitted to the stock exchanges on which the Company’s
equity shares are jisted, to enable them to put them on their respective websites.
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All stock exchange disclosures and periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern,
corporate governance report, and statement of investor grievances settlement among others
are filed electronically on NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS).

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Company will send Annual Report containing inter afia, annual audited
financial statements, Auditors’ Report, Board Report including Management Discussion &
Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report including information for the Shareholders,
other important information and Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting along with
proxy forms electronically, who have opted for the same.

The said reports are also available on the Company’s website www.pushpanijali.co.

9.) General Shareholders’ Information

a.) Annual General Meeting:
Date: 28" Day of September 2018
Time: 10:30 A.M.
venue: Hotel Himgiri Residency
Haridwar Main road, Shikhu Pur,‘Devpura
Haridwar-249401,
Uttarakhand, India

b.) Financial Calendar (tentative):

Fipancial Year 4 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

A‘élo-ption of half yearly Results for the half year ending:

["30™ September, 2018 T 237 \week of November 2018

37Maren, 2019 | 4" week of May 2019.

Financial Calendar:

Financial Year 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Adoption of half yearly Results for the half year ending.

| 30" September, 2017 27 week of November 2017 'ﬂ'i"]




31 March, 2018 B 4" week of May 2018

c) Book Closure:
The company is not required to close its Books.

d) Dividend Payment Date:
As recommended, No dividend to be declared.

e) Liquidity:
(i} Equity Shares
The equity shares of the Company of the face value of Rs. 10
each (fully paid) are listed on the following Stock Exchange:
a) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051.

(ii)Stock Code
National Stock Exchange (NSE): PUSHPREALM

f)} Stock Market Data:

Month  / k "~ National Stock Exchange (NSE)
. High (Rs.) | Low(Rs) ~ Average
Date Market Date | Market | Of High and
Capitalisatio Capitalisation | Low Market
n Capitalisati
on
July 2017 17107/2 | 62,16,83,100 | 10/07/2 | 55,51,09,950. | 58.83,96,525.00
017 .00 017 00
August 2017 07/08/2 | 61,96,80,900 | 11/08/2 |53,90,92,350. | 57,93.86,625.00
017 .00 017 00
|'September 12/09/2 | 87,59,62.500 | 01/09/2 1 67.27.39,200. | 77.43.50.850.00
2017 017 .00 017 00

October 2017 | 17/10/2 | 81,03,90,450 | 19/10/2 ) 74,83,22,250. | 77.93.56.350 00




017 .00 017 0o

November 30/11/27 1 79,38,72,300 | 28/11/2 | 70,32,72,750. | 74,85 72 525.00
2017 017 .00 017 00
December | 28/12/2 | 96,85,64,250 | 07/12/2 | 75,03.24.450 | 85,94,44 350.00
2017 017 .00 017 00

| January 2018 | 11/01/2 | 94.60,39,500 | 31/01/2 | 80,08 80.000. 87,34,59,750.00
018 .00 “ lo1s 00

‘February 2018 | 01/02/2 | §3.36,13,000 | 06/02/2 | 66,57,31.500. | 74.83.22.250.00
018 .00 018 00

March 2018 | 01/03/2 | 70,07,70,000 | 08/03/2 | 56,06,16,000. | 63,08,93,000.00
018 .00 018 00

d) Performance in comparison with NSE Nifty 50:

h) Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents:

Bigshare Services Private Limited, having registered office situated at E-2/3, Ansa
Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai, 400072, India. Phone
No. +91 22 6263 8200; Fax No.. +91 22 6263 8299; e-mail ID: info@bigshareonline.com:
Contact Persons: Mr. Jibu John; (Website: www. bigshareonline.com) is the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent (RTA) for Physicai Shares.

i) Share Transfer System:

The share transfer requests received in physical form are processed through Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent, within 6-7 days from the date of receipt, subject to the completeness
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of documents in all aspects. The share certificates duly endorsed are returned immediately
to the shareholders by RTA. With a view to expedite the process of share transfer, the Board
has delegated the power of share transfer/ transmission etc. to Company Secretary and/ or
Group General Counsel (Legal). The details of transfers/ transmission so approved from
time to time are placed before the Stakeholders Relationship Committee & the Board for
noting and confirmation. .

Pursuant to Regulation 7(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Compliance Certificate jointly signed by Compliance officer and
authorized representative of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent certifying- compliance
regarding maintenance of securities transfer facilities; Certificate by a practicing Company
Secretary on half-yearly basis, inter-alia confirming due compliance of share transfer
formalities by the Company under Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Certificates for timely dematerialization of the
shares as per SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, and Reconciliation of
the Share Capital Audit obtained from a practicing Company Secretary have been submitted
to stock exchanges within stipulated time.

j) Investor Relations:

Investors’ Relations function seeks to serve promptly, efficiently and with constant interface
the company does large institutional sharehcider base comprise foreign institutional
investors, financial institutions, banks, mutual funds & insurance companies. All queries from
any shareholder are promptly attended. The function assists the investor community in better
understanding the Company's strategy, vision and long-term growth plans in order to take
those informed decisions on their investment.

k) Share Ownership pattern:

S.NO. : _Category [ Ason31.03.3018 7
No. of shares Percentage (%)
hetd |

1. Promoters and promoter group:- 5787000 57.80

« Directors and relatives | 578700 57.80
2. Foreign Institutional Investors 0o e T
& OCBs ] B .
3. NRIis & Foreign Nationals 0 0
4. Mutual Funds & UTI 0 ) 0 -
5. Banks, Fls, NBFCs & Insurance | O .
Companies 1 B -
6. Bodies Corporate 0 0
7. Public 4224000 4220
- TOTAL 10011000 [100%
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I} Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on 31.03.2018

S.no. |Category | Holders | % of No. of | % of
Total shares Total
Holders held Shares
1. 18000 137 52% | 348025 3.46%
2. 500110000 | B3 20% 425635 | 4.25%
3. | 10001-20000 A 3% 547000 5.46%
4. 20001-30000 11 4%, 273340 2.73%
5. 30001-40000 03 1% 168000 1.08%
6. | 40001-50000 | 05 2% 236000 2.36%
7. 50001-100000 ' 09 " 3% | 684000 6.83%
‘8. 1100001 and above 12 5% 7391000 73.83%
TOTAL T 24 ] 100% 10011000 | 100%

m) Demateriaijzation of Shares

The equity shargs of the Company are tradable in compulsory dematerialized segment of the
Stock Exchanges and are available in depository system of National Securities Depository
Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited As on 31 March 2018, 1,00,11,000
equity shares (constituting 100%) were in dematerialized form.

n) Outstanding Global Depository Receipt’s/ American Depository Receipt’s /
Warrants or any Convertible instruments:

The Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts/ American "Depository
Receipts / Warrants or any other convertible instruments except the stock options to its
employees.

o) Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities:

The details of foreign exchange exposures, if any as on 31 March 2018 will be disclosed in
the standalone financial statements.

p) Plant Locations:



The Company does not have any manufacturing or processing plants. The Registered
Office of the Company is situated at Nath House Devpura, Haridwar, Uttarakhand 249401,
India. The Corporate Office of the Company is situated at Khasra no- 11 Tarla Nagal near
HeliPad Sahastradhra Road, Pehradun, Uttarakhand, 248001, India.

q) Address for correspondence:

(i) investor Correspondence

For transfer/ dematerialization of equity shares, non-payment of dividend and
any other queries relating to the equity shares, Investors may write to:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

Unit; E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,

Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka,

Andheri (E), Mumbai, 400072,

India.

Phone No. +91 22 6263 8200

Fax No.: +91 22 6263 8299

E-mail ID: info@bigshareonline.com

For dematerialization of equity shares, the investors shall get in touch with
their respective depository participant(s).

(ii) Any query on Annual Report

Mr. Deepak Mittal

1/ﬁ A Teg Bahadur Road
Dehradun-248001, Uttarakhand

India.

{

r) Disclosur%s with respect to the Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed

Suspense Accounts:

Pursuant to Part F of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Company reports the

following details:

Particulars Demat ~ Physical
_ No. of No. of | No. of No. of
Equit Equit
Shareholders quity Shareholders aury
Shares Shares
Aggregate number  of |
shareholders and the
outstanding shares in the 0 0 0 0
suspense account lying as on

L1




10" July, 2017.

“Number of shareholders who

approached the Company for
transfer ~ of  shares  from
suspense account during the
year.

Number of shareholders to
whom shares were transferred
from the suspense account
during the year.

Aggregate  number  of

shareholders * and the
outstanding shares in the
suspense account lying as on
31% March, 2018.

Frozen Status

0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
Not Frozen

The information contained in the list is as per the certificate issued by the Choice Equity

Broking Private Limited attached at the end to this report.

8. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have

potential conflict with the Company’s interests at large:

During the year under review, the Company had not entered into any material transaction
with any of its refated parties but the transactions entered with related party is disclosed in
Annexure-4 of Board Report in Form AOC-2. All the transactions were in the ordinary
course of business and on arm length price basis, duly approved by the Audit Committee.

(b) Details of né‘n=compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the
listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any
matter related to capital markets, during the last three years:

The company has complied al the provisions, wherever applicable on the company,
therefore none of the penalties, strictures has been imposed on the company by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets,

during the last three years.

(c) Details of establishment of Vigil mechanism & whistle Blower policy:

The Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for employees and Directors to report concern about unethical behavior. The
employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations and the Code of

Conduct.



Complaint by or against Senior Management (as defined in the Company's Code of
Conduct) should be made to the Chairman of the Company with a copy to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employes was denied access to the
Audit Committee.

(d) Details of Compliance of Mandatory and Non Mandatory Requirements:
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements as required in the Listing

Regulations. The company has not adopted any non-mandatory requirements as required in
the Listing Regulations

(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
The Company doesn't have any ‘material’ subsidiaries hence, this clause is not applicable
upon the company.

() Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions:

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions s
http:/iwww.pushpanjali.co/invester.php.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Limited

€~
Deepak Mittal
(Managing Djrector)
DIN: 01616201
R/O: 1/1 A Teg Bahadur
Road Dehradun-248001
Uttarakhand, India

!
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Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer {CFQ) Certification

To,
The Board of Directors
Pushpanjaii Realms and infratech Limited

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby certify
that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statementsand the cash flow statement for the financial year
2017-18, on standalone basis and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

{b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year 2017-18 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company's code of conduct. .

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disciosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware and that we have taken all necessaty steps to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) Significant changes, if any. in internal control over financial reporting during the
financiai year 2017-18; o '

(ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting poliéies during the financiat year 2017-18
and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) Instanées of significant fraud of which we aré;aware and the involvement therein,

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal
control system,over financial reporting :

(AP T

Mr. Sumit Goyal : Mr. Deepak Mittal
Chief Financial Officier Managing Director

Place: Dehradun
Date; 28/08/2018



_FORM NO, MGT 8
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Annexure 3

2(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

As on financial yesr ended on 31.03.2018

rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS!

1 CIN - LID02UR2013PLED00OTET R
2 Registration Date 1207 2013 =
3 Harme of the Com [Pushpenall Reaima And intrstoch Limied
4 Category/Sub-categary of the Company iComggng bl by Shaies == e

-{Mar-govt company I
5 Address of the Registered office & contact details | Nath House Devpura Handwar- 2648401, Utlaraxhand, India

0125-2670504

] Whether listed company Ligted ]
7 Mame, Address & cantact delails of the Registrar | Bigshare Services Privale Limited

& Transfes Agent, if any

Aodress: E-211. Ansa Industial Estate, Sakwihar Hoad, Sak Naka, Andnen (E). Mumbai.
400072 India
#8722 8263 8200

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

I

(& the business activilies ing 10 % or more of the total lurnover of the compainy shall Di slated) B .
5. No. Name and Description of main products [ services NIC Gode of the % to total wmover of the
Productservice
i CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDING AND OTHER COLONIES 410 100
m. FARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPAN
S. No. Name and address of the Company CINGLN Holding! Subsidiary! %ol Applicable
Associate shares Section
held

1

3 NIL S =R : -

3 1 T ) R
IV._SHARE HOLDING PATTERN == ==
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of (olal oquly) - -

(I} Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Sharcholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No, aof Shares held at the end of the year % Ghange
during the year
I Demat Physical Total %ol Total | Demat Physical Total %ol
Shares Total
) L Shares
A. Promoters T
|(1] Indian SSem———— e s |
&) Individuall HUF 46.82 250 | 46.82.350] 83 57% 57 87,000 5787000
b) Central Govt x Q0%
- (009
L 00%
00%
0%
46.82.250 45.82.250 63 57% - 57.87 000 57 B7.000
- S g e
b 0.00% N
- _0.00%] T = | p——
0 00% IS
—_0.00%
B - - 0.00% Z z
Total shareholding of 46.82,250 4682250 B3 57% AT BT.O000 57.87.000
Promoter
(A} S(AN T AND)
B. Public Shareholding. R
B poow| | ]
0%
) Gentral Govt 00%
d) Stste Goviis) L0
&) Venture Capltal Funds 00%

Insurance. Companies 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%]
a1 Flis 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
) Fareign Ventura Capilal Funds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%,
1) CHhars (spacity) 0.00% 0.00% D.OOTJ
Sub-total (BY1):- 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%

2. Non-Institutions =i bl C =
= 7Y S N —
0.00%
i) Individual sharenalders nolding 10000 10000 014% 7420000 | 2420000 | 2417%
naminal share capital uplo Rs. 1




Ifkh .
i) Individual shareholders holding 2461250 2461250 33.42% 1604000 1804000 | 1802% -26.70%
nomirial share capital n excess of
Rs 1 lakh
<) Oiers (Han Promaler HUT T211500] 211,500
Sub-total (B){2):- 2682750 | 26.82.750 I6.43% 42.24.000 4224000 | 42 18% 57 45%
Total Public Shareholding 2582750 [ 2682750 J643% 42 24 000 4224 000 | 42 18% 57.45%
|(BI=(BI(1)+{BNZ) .
C. Shares held by Custodian for 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
(GDRs & ADRSs
Grand Total [A+8+C) 7365000 | 73.65.000 | 100.00% 1,00.11,000 | _1,00,11.000 | 100.00%
i} Shar 1g of Promaolers
9 Sharéholder's Name . g at iha hag g of Sh g atthe end of the year % change in
the year shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total % of No. of Shares % of total % of
Shares | Shares of | Shares Shares of the | Shares
tha Pladgad! company Pledged
company encumbar !
4 ed to total ancumb
shares
e BEEFAR MITTAL I 0ot
FZAKHTMITTAL 12.83.750 17 57% 0%
AL VAL A 17E8.750] 74 20% L%
4 SHAIF ALTWALIA 11.04.750| 15.00%, D0
Liii} Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, If there is no change)
Sl Na. Particulars Date Reasaon Shareholding 2t the b oithe |C t during the year
year
No. of shares % of total N, of shares % of total shares
shares of the af the Compary
Company
Nama
|
Al e begnning of 0.00%
the yosr
Changes dunng the
year =
At he ond of the year T W%
3 |Name NO CHANGE
A e beginning of 0%
Use: year
Changes di ‘ g the
o
e
Al the and af the year 0.00%
{ivl Sharehalding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Diechors, &) and Holders of GORS and ADRs)
5l No, Faor each of the Top | St ding at the of the | Ci during the year
10 sh held year
No. of shares % of total Mo of shares % of total
shares of shares of the
the Company
Company
Mame: Shri
i Parastam Holdings
private limited
Al the baginning of 1.36% 0.00%
the year
Changes during the 1.00.000 0.00% 0.00%:
Bar
Al the ond of Ihe year 1.00.000 100% 0.00%
3 Name: Manish Garg
Al the beginnng of 2.06.500 2.80% 0.00%
the yar
Chenges duriig the 0.00% 0.00%
yoar
Al the end of the year 2,06.500 206% 0.00%




3 Namo: Manish Garg . R . )
) {HUF) -
At the beginning ol 1,386,500 1.85% 0.00%
Ihe year
Changes during the 0.00% Q.00%
year
* Al the end of the year 1.36.500 1.36% 0.00%
4 Name: Vinila Garg
Al the beginning of 3.00.000 a0l " ) T o60%
{he year . L
Changes during the 0.00% 0.00%
year -
Al the end of he year 3,00.000 3.00% 0.00%
& Nameé:Narender
. Singhi
Al the beginning of 3.75.000 509% 0.00%
the year
Changes during the 8,000 0.11% 0.00%
year -
At the end of the year 3.83.000 3.83% 0 00%
5 Name: Mannish -
Gupta
Al the beginning of 2.00.000 2.72% 0.00%
the year
Changes during the 0.00% 0.00%
year
Althe end of lhe year 2,00.000 2.00% 000%
7 Name: Shikhar Gupta
Al the beginning ol 20,000 027% 0 Q0%
Ihe year
Changes during the 88,000 1.19% 0.00%
year -
Al the end of the year 108,000 1.08% 0.00%
8 Name: Bhumika
Surnit Desai
Al lhe beginning of - 6.00% 0.00%
lhe year
Changes during the 1,54,000 2.09% 0.00%
A2 R (R T
Althe end of the year 1,54 000 1.54% 0.00%
9 Name: Manish
Kumar Singhat
Al the béginning of 0.00% 0.00%
Ihe year S
Changes during lhe 116,000 1.58% 0.00%
year
At the efd of the year 118,000 116% 0.00%
G
NameMadhukar
10 Sheth '
Al the beginning of - 0.00% ) 0.00%]
the year
Changes during the 1.00.000 136%)| 0.60%
year
Althe end of ihe year 1.00.000 100% "0 00%|
(v} Shareholiing of Directors and Key Managerlal Personnal:
Sk NO. Shareholding of | Shareholding al the beginning of the {Cumulalive Shareholding during the year
each Directors and year » N .
Key Managerial No. of shares “ of total No. of shares % of lota)
Personnel shares of shares of lhe
the Company
Company
1 Name: Deepak Mitlal
Althe beginning af 15.99.750 21.72%
the year e, B
Changes during the -
year
At the endt of the year 15.99.750 15.98%
2 Name:Rakhi Mitial
Allhe beginning of 12.93.750 17 57% -
the year P S
Changes during the
vear




At lhe end ol the year

12.93,750

12.92%

Name:Rajpat Walia

Al lhe beginning of
the year

17.86.750

24.29%

“TAlthe ond of he year|

(;!\;mgé; during the
year

17.88.750

17 87%

V., INDEBTEDNESS

-

Indebtedness of lhe Company including interest cutstanding/accrued bul not due for payment.

Particulars

1} Prancpat Amount

Secured Loans excluding
...deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total indebtedness

U S VX T TR

i) Interest due but not p:‘nd

4037758600

" 21,37.17,751.00

i) Interest accrued bul nol due B

Total {I+il+fil} 17,33,40,165.00 4,03,77 586.00 - 21,37.17,751.00
Change in Indebledness during Lhe financial yedr

* Addition 4,04,76.144.00 | 4,04,76,144.00
* Reduction | 63.66,719.00 I 63,66,719.00
[Nel Change s [ 4,04,76.144,00 - 24,78,27,176:00

Indebtedness atthe end of the financial ygar

i) Principal Amount

21,38,16,309.00

3.40,10,867.00

24,78,27.176.00

iii) Inferest o

iiy Interesl due but not paid

crued hul not due

| Tolal (i+iixii)

21.38,16,309.00

3.40,10,867.00

24,78,27,176-00

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Reimuneralion to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Mahager

SINo. Parliculars of Remuneralion ] Name of MDMWTD! Manager Tolal Amount
Name| Deepak Millal Rajpal Walia
B Designation| Managing Director |¥hole Time Director,
1 Gross salary___ - 6000000 6000000 12000000
(@) Salary as per provisions conlained in seclion 17(1) of lhe
Income-tax Acl, 1981 - -
) Valie af parquisiies WS 17(2) Income-tax Act. 1961 B .
() Profils in licu of salary under seclion 17(3) Income- tax Act, B
196t
2 Slock Oplion -
3 SwealEquity -
Commission -
n - as % of profil -
- olhers, specily
5 Olhers, please specify
R B ) Total (A) 60,00,000.00 60,00,000.00 12000000

Ceiling as per the Acl

;
on o other Dirgolors§1

SlI No.

Particular’s of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

(Rs/Lac)

Independent Directors

lee for board commillee

Other FxecutiveNon-Exe (S
Fae for atlending board commitles
Comrussion R

Qlhers, please specily

Ay ki

Millal

"60.00.600 00

60.00,000.00

Folal (2}

60.00,000.00

60,00,000.00

Tolal (13)=(1+2)

60.00,000.00

60.00,000.00

1.80,00,000.00

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remungration o Key

Personnel olher than MiD/ManagerAVI D

No,

Particulars of Remuneration

ne of Key Managerial Personnel

Total Amount

Name

Surnit Goyal

~ sidion

CFo

Arpana Nassa
cs

1011776

390009

1401776

(@) Salary 5 per pru\f\sldrvé
conlained in seclion 17(1) of the

(b} Value of perquisiies uis 17(2)

{e§ Prafits in licu of salary under
seclion 17(3) Income: tax Act. 1961

Stock
Cplion

Sweal
Equity

Commission
as % of profit

others, spealy

Y



| 5 [Gthers, piease spociy - I T

L [Total | |

V. PENALTIES f PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENGES:
Type Section Arief Description Details of Penalty /  |Authority (RD 7 NCLT/ COURT]| Appeal made, if any (give
of the Punishment/ Delails)
Compani Compounding fees

es Act o imposed o
A. COMPANY

Pcnal(y | f — R -
[Purishment [ | U -
Compounding - i p— ,‘
5. CIRECTORS e NI .

Penally ! N . . .
Punishment | I ]

Compounding ] | J —_—
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty [

Punishrnent i T o
Gompounding | e e

FForand an behall of the Board Dl'lpil't‘clm'x
Pushpanjali Realms And Wfratech’Limited

Deepak Mitial

(Managing Direetor)

DIN: 016146201

RIO: 171 A Teg Rahadur

Road Deluadus-243001 ;
Uttarakhand, India

Rajpat fal
(Wholztime Director)

DING 06829234

ROz 984 Raceeanrse Black
D.G.A Debradun-218001
Vtirakhand, tadia

Piace hyar

Dae; 2810812018
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Annexure 4
PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED

AQC-2 (RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION)

d Salienl terms of the confracts of arrangements of transactions including the value, if any i
a Justification for entering into such contracts or arr: nis of transactions NA
f Date(s} of approval by the Bosrd A
q Amount pald as advances, if any MNA
| Date on which the special resnlution was passed in general meeling as required under first
h |proviso 1o section 188 NA
B2 Details of materfal conlracts or arrangement or transs at arm's length basis
| a | Name(s) of the related parly and nature of relaticnship Mr Rajpal Walia Smt Rakh Mittal
_ | (Whole Time Director)| (Director)
)
| | b Na'le of rangementsiransachion Paymen made for Payment mace 'or
: P gevelopment night of | develepment rnght of
' tos land ket lang
|
i ] c | Duration of the conlracts ! arrangernentsiransactions NA NA
T
m -] “m.m__m.._._ werms of the contracts or aangements of lansections moiudng the value, ifany. 28.02.560.00 2832 50000
L
i e Dateis) of approval by the Board f any NA MA
1 |
il t _?....._u_._._.: paid as advances. (f any
1 H -

1IN 06829234
: 48N Racecaurse Bk
1LGA Dehradun- 2480000
Uitvakhand. Toddia

v Teg Bahadur
hradun-248001
1 niararhband, Tndin

Plave: Dehradun
D 28NR2018



VS ASSOCIATES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
CIN: L70102UR2013PLIC000787

Nath House Devpura Haridwar

Uttarakhand 249401, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ‘PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND
INFRATECH LIMITED” (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing Our opinion thereon.

Management Responsibility for Secretarial Compliances

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial
records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and regulations.

Opinion

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period ended on 31%' March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained ty Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Limited (“The Company”)
for the period ended on 31% March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and the
applicable provision of Companies Act, 1956;

i. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder;

lii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

A-52, Lower Ground Floor, Nirman Vihar, Delhi-110092
Ph.: 011-22442221, 43026621 Mob.: 09910792221
E-mail - office@vsassociate.com, Website : www.vsassociate com




iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings ; Not Applicable.

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the
Company :-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; Not Applicable.

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; Not Applicable.

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; Not Applicable.

i. The Company has complied with all the requirements under the Equity Listing
Agreements entered into with National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Emerge
(NSE EMERGE); and the Memorandum and Articles of Association.

2. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

A. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
B. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange
of India Limited, Emerge (NSE EMERGE).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards & Listing Agreements, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and
Woman Director.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board/Committee Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent generally seven days in advance and a system
exists for seeking and cbtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicakle laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.




We_further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific events/ actions,
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, standards & guidelines, etc.

For VS Asso

Date: 27.08.2018 “
Place: Delhi

FCS: 6379/ CP No.: 6959

Note: This report is to be read with Our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report.




Annexure A

To,

The Members

PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
CIN: L70102UR2013PL.C000787

Nath House Devpura Haridwar

Uttarakhand 249401 India

We report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. Further, Our
verification to the compliance of the laws applicable specifically to the Company is
limited to test check on random basis without going into the detailed technical
scrutiny.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For VS Associates
Company Secretari

W
g L /
CS Vijay Kumar

Prop
FCS : 6379/ CP No. :6959

Date: 27.08.2018
Place: Delhi
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Ehartercd Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Limited
(Formerly known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Pvt.Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial conirol, that weré operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of 6ﬁhe financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures tO obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statements, whether due to fraud or
ervor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the




Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and its Profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the order’) issued by the

" Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the annexure ‘A a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In ourgﬁbpinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2618,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure B’,




g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial
position.

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, and as required on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

(iii) As at the year end, there was no amount that was required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Arun Naresh & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 007127N

%

Place: Dehradun
Dated: 30-05-2018
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The Annexure “A’ referred to in Our Report of even date to the members of Pushpanjali
Realms And Infratech Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31* March,
2018.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that;

(@) (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically veyified by the management during the year at reasonable
interval and as informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us title
deed of immovable properties are held in the company name.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency, of such verification is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records.

(iii)The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other party covered in register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013. Therefore requirement of clause iii(a) to iii(c) of Paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
advanced any loan to directorsito a company in which the Director is interested to which
provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan and advance,
nor made any investment and not given guarantee or provided security to which provisions of
section 186 of the Act apply and hence not commented upon.

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi)As explained to us, maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government yinder Section 148(1) of the Act.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, the

Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, employees state insurance (ESI), Income-tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax
(VAT), Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Excise Duty, Cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it, to the appropriate authorities except TDS
Rs.24,21,900 & Income Tax Rs.1,32,83,361/-

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax or custom duty or excise duty and cess that
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute.




(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has

(i)

not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, banks, governments or dues to
debenture holders except repayment of bank interest on term loan as given below table:

Interest Amount(Rs.) Due date of | Actual date of
_ Payment payment
12,95,246 " 107.05.2017 15.05.2017
13,49,324 07.06.2017 13.07.2017
12,86,652 07.07.2017 13.07.2017
13,36,789 07.08.2017 - 125.08.2017
14,14,140 - 07.09.2017 13.10.2017
16,76,675 07.10.2017 29.12.2017
14,61,031 07.11.2017 28.02.2018
14,62,828 07.12.2017 28.02.2018
18,42,951 s 07.01.2018 28.02.2018
12,50,878 07.02.2018 28.02.2018

ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has raised money Rs. 14,55,30,000/- by way of initial
public offer which was being applied for the purpose for which it was raised. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no matetial fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees
was noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid /provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
schedule V toithe Act.

(xi) The company is not a nidhi company. Thetefore requirement of clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the

(xii)

(xii)

Companies {(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review under section 42 of




the Companies Act 2013 . Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) ‘of the Ordér are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with director during the year. '

(xv) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act 1934.
For Arun Naresh & Co
Chartered Accountants
» FRN 007127
o ==TTTOA N
- Place: Dehradun® (CA Anin K mg@mé’ ol
Dated: 30-05-2018 ' CPattier )
M.Ng8%: S

oY




The Annexure -B to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the standalone
Financial Statements of Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Limited (Formerly known as
Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Pvt. Ltd.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pushpanijali
Realms And Infratech Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with my / our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the tifnely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, fo the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 168 Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidenceé about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system aver financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of intefnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is ‘sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control aver financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance ragarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company. (2) provide reasonable assurance
that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordarice with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of




unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ’

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, &n adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,

For Arun Naresh & Co

Chartered Accountants...
FRN No. 007/87NES
.4\ f \\Qp
P SR

-, T b g
Place: Dehradun €A Al b o
Dated: 30-05-2018 - Parthén/




PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Private Limited)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars Note As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
No. Rs. Rs.

|. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Funds
{ay Share Capital 2 100,110,000 73,650,000
(b} Reserve and Surplus "3 226,167,933 63,047,197

2. Non Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 4 89,481,730 137,744,647
(b) Deferred Tax Liablities 25.3 381,650 856,978

3. Current Liabilities

(a) Short-term Borrowings 5 59,164,926 67.845.681
(b} Trade Payables 6
(i) Total outstanding dues to Micro 6 (i} - -
enterprises & Small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditor other 6 (ii) 220,620,806 58,801,666
than Micro enterprises & Small enterprises
(c) Other Current Liabilites 7 114,598,437 290,878,421
(d) Shorl Term Provisions 8 32,802,251 12,518,100
TOTAL 843,327,733 705,342,690
. ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets

(i} Tangible Assets 9 31,240,530 28,517,757
{b} Non-Current investment 10 12,509,500 12,509,500

{c} Long-term loans and advances 11 25,116,410 8,661,110

2. Current Assets

(a) Inventories 12 584,783,232 417,119,400
(a) Trade Receivables 13 34,673,725 31,052,312
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 14 23,542,555 4,812,145
(c) Short-Yerm Loans and Advances 15 131,261,117 202,026,524
(d) Gther Current Assets 16 . 200,664 643,944

P —E N ———
TOTAL 843,327,733 705,342,690

See accbmpanying notes (1 to 25) forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For ARUN NARESH & CO. For and on behalf of the Board 6f Diregtors
Chartered Accountants WW{»
Firm No. 007127N R e

(Deepak Mittal)
Managing Director

OIN: 015162;1
8
e A iﬂ? & -
Lo e
Place: De ajdA ) HYISuinit Goyal) Jyrpana Nassa)
Date: 30/05 6?( Chief Financial Officer ontpany Secretary
M.No. ; 528123 M.No. : 44285



PUSHPANJALL REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
(Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Private Limited)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

particul Note Year Ended Year Ended
articulars No. 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs.
A CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations o 17 296,795,103 257,078,851
Other Income 18 216,402 4,362,403
3 Total revenue 297,011,505 261,441,254
Expenses
(a) Cost of construction.” 19 . 348,542,839 390,144,998
(b) Change in inventoriés of Finished goods,work-in-
progress and others 20 (167,663,832) (194,111,233)
(c) Employee benefits expenses 21 16,223,800 10,796,234
(d) Finance costs 22 1,914,712 2,156,682
(&) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9 4,023,492 4,129,654
(f) Other expenses 23 23,255,405 11,828,892
Total expenses : 226,296,416 224,945 228
Profit / (Loss) before tax (3-4) 70,715,089 36,496,026
6 Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense for current year 20,300,000 12,300,000
(b) Current tax expense relating to prior years 2,149,808 -
(c) Net cuirent tax expense 22,449,808 12,300,000
(d) Deferred tax 253 (475,328) 74,193
21,974,480 12,374,193
7 Profit for the year (4-5) 48,740,609 24,121,833
8 Earning per Share 2
(a) Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 25.2 5.26 4,68

See accompanying notes (1 fo 25} forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

~ For ARUN NARESH & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 007127N LT ‘*‘””"‘Jﬁf i’gﬁ_ﬁsﬁ'
o S h \\\'?‘ "‘“**—u\/’a‘(.

s (Deepak Mittal)
X 2 Managing Director
r

. 4 y A
DIN: 01616201 - DIN; 06828
furitol

(Sumit Goyal)

“{_&{Arpana Nassa)
Place: Dehradun Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: 30/05/2018 M.No. - 528123 M.No. : 44285



PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
(Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratoch Private Limited)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2018

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31/03/2018 31/03/2017
(Rupees) {Rupees)

CA; PE| WITIE )

Net Profit Before Taxation 70,715,089 36,496,026

Adjustments for:

Depreciation for assets used for office 4,023,492 4,129,654

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assels 3,286,310 -

Operating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes o 78,024,891 40,625,680

AdJustments for changes In Working Capltal :

Decrease { ( Increase ) in Inventories {167,663,832) (194,111,233)

Decrease / ( Increase ) in Trade Receivable (3.621,413) (75.421,650)
Decreass / ( Increase ) in Short Term Loan and Advances 70,765,407 -
Decrease / ( Increase ) in Other Current Assets 443,277 -
Increase / { Decrease ) in Short Term Borrowings {8,680,755) 134,016,028
Increase / ( Decrease } in Trade Payables 161,819,140 -
Increase / { Decrease ) in Other Current Liability {176,279,984) -
Increase / { Decrease ) in Shart Term Provision 20,284,151 -

Cash Generated from Operaling Actlvities
Current Year Income Tax & Interest on Income Tax

(24,909,118)
(21,974,480}

{94,891,175)
(12,300,000)

Increase / ( Decreass ) in Deferrad Tax {475,328) -
Net Cash from Operating Activities {A) (47,358,926) {107,191,175)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (14,876,199) (3,698,953)
Sale of Fixed Assets 4,843,624 -
{Increase)/Decrease in long term loans & advances (16,455,300) (730,000)
Net Cash from/ (Used in) Investing Activities (B) (26,487,875) (4,428,953)
CASHFLOWF INANCING_ACT! 1E:
Acceptance/Repayment of Long Term Borrowing (48,262,917) 55,135,823
Increase/(Dacrease) in Unsecured Loan - {31,151,696)
Amount raised by issuing equily share capital 26,460,000 24,550,000
Security premium amount received 114,380,128 24,550,000
Net Cash from {used) in Financing'A‘étivlties {C) 92,577,211 73,084,127
Net Increase /(Decrease) In cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 18,730,411 (38,536,001)
- Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,812,145 43,348,147
23,542,555 4,812,145

- Cash and Cash Equivalents at close of the year

Notes:

3
{a) Tha above cash flow statemant-has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the AS-3 on cash flow statements as notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act'), read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{b) Figures in brackels represent outflows.
{c) Previous year figures have been recast/restated where necessary.

See accompanying notes {1 to 25} forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For ARUN NARESH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No, 007127N

{Arun Kum r?! ln)%’t
M.No. 0845981 i7"
\;.3 1A 0. QU
Place: Dehr: ﬁb N
Date: 30052098 ggf G5
.

For and on behaif of the Board of Dir: kiy/
== = ﬂy“v‘f /*"{

pe -
/_‘/:T =
{Rajpal walia )
Whole Tima Digegtor,
DIN: csaza,b%‘/v

Fpana Nassa)
Company Secretary
M.No. : 44285

{Deepak Mittal)
Managing Director
DIN: 01616201

Chief Financial Officer
M.No. : 628123



PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Notas

Particulars

11

1.3

Company Overview

Pushpanjali Realms and Infratech Linited (‘the company’) Is & public limitad company engaged In Real Estate
development business. Company’s Reglstered office is situated at Nath House, Devpura, Haridwar- 249401, Uttarakhand
and corporate office sttuated at Khasra no- 11, Tarla Nagal, Near Heli-Pad, Sal Road, D ) 248001,
Uttarakhand.

»

Pravious year figures has been regrouped and recasted where required to make the figures comparable with Current Year
figures.

Significant accounting pollcles
Basls of accounting and preparation of financlal statements

The financial stalements {financial statements'} of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2018, prepared and

under the historicat cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with the provisions of]
the companies Act, 2013, to the extent considered necessary for the purpose of the acceunts, and in accordance with the|
accounting principles generalty accepted in India (* Indian GAAP"} and comply with the mandatory Accounting Standard
(‘AS") issued by the Instituté of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAF) fo the extent applicable. The Financlal Statements;
are presented in Indian Rupees, Round off to the nearest Rupees.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with indian GAAP raguiras the Management to make estimates)
and assumplions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities {including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future resuits could differ due to these estimates and the differences|
betwaen the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Revenue recognlition

The company ls recognising its revenus as per the Revised Guidance Note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of
India (ICAI) on ‘Accounting for Real Estate Transactions {Revised 2012y, Revenue is recognised on parcentage ofl
completion mathod if (a) Actual construction and development cost (excluding land costy incurred is 25% or more of the
such total estimated cost, (b)-At least 25% of tha saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with buyers|
and (c) At least 10% of the ttal revenue as per sales agreement or any othe legally enforcable document are realised as
at the reporting date.

Tanglble fixed assets and Depreclation

Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumuiated depreclation and impairment losses, If any. The cost of fixed assets
includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset Is ready for Its|
intended use and other incidental expenses incurred up %o that date. Exchange differences arising on restatement /|
settlement of long-termy. foreign currency borrowings relating to acquisition of depreciable fixed assets are adjusted to the|
cost of the respectivg ‘assets and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such assets. Subsequent expenditure|
relating to fixed assets is-capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase In the future benefits from such asset|
beyond its previously assessed standard of perfermance.

Fixed assets retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable)
value and ara disclosed separately in the Balance Sheet.

Impalrment of assets

\Whenever events indicate that assets may be impaired, the assets are subject 10 a test of recoverability based on
eslimates of future cash flows arising from centinuing use of such assets and from its ultimate disposak. A provision for
impairment loss is recognised where it is probable that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered
through use or sale of the asset.

Depreciation and amo rtisatlon

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-lne method over their estimated useful fives, as
determined by the management, at the rates which are equal to or higher than the rates prescribed under
Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is charged on 2 pro-rata basis for assels purchased/sold
during the year.




Gash and cash equlvalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash eguivalents are shori-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible]
into known amounts of ¢ash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings par share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equlty shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of ail dilutive potantial equity
shares. e

FInance cost

Borvrowlng cost that are-atiributable to acquisition or construction of a qualifying assets / project is capitalized as part of
cost of such assets/project. Qualifying assets/ project is ona that necessarily takes ona year or more to get ready for its
inlended use or sales, All other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period i which they are Incurred.

Deferred Tax

Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Income taxes are accounted for on the basis of estimated taxes payable and adjusted for timing ditferences between the
taxahle income and accounting income as reported in the financial stalements. Timing differences between the taxable
income and the accounting income as at March 31, 2018 that revarse in ene or more subsequent years are recognised if
they result in taxable amounts. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are established at the enacted tax rates. Changes in the
enacled rates are recognised in the period of enactment.

Deferred tax assels are recognised only if there is a reasonable certainty that they will be realised and are reviewed for the
appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each balance sheet date.




(Formely Known as P
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PUSHPANJALI REALMS AND'INFRATECH LIMITED
hpanjall Realms And h Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the financial statements ‘

Mot:-2 Share Capital

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Number of shares | AmountiRs.) Number of shares ~~_ Amount(Rs.)
{a* Authorised Shara Capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 sach 10,500,000 105,000,000 10,500,000 105,000,000
(b} Issued, Subscnbed and Fuliy Pald up Share Capl(él
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 10,014,000 100,110,000 7,365,000 73,850,000
Nots :~*The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.10)- per share. Each holder of equlty shares Is entiled to one vote
par share. In the event of Liquldation, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to recelve romainning assets of the company, after distribution
of all prefrentlal The distribution will be In the proportion of no. of equity shares held by the sharsholder,
(a) The Company hés alloted 28,486,000 shares Equity Share at a premium of Rs. 46/- per share In pursuance to |PO dated 05.07-2017.
(b} Reconcllation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of rep3rting parlod
[Farticulars As at 31,03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Number of shares .’ Amount(Rs.) Nurnber of shares Amouni(Rs.}
Equity Shares with Voting rights )
Al the beginning of the year i 7,365,000 73,650,000 4,910,000 49,100,000
Add: Equity shares Issued during the year 2,646,000 26,460,000 2,455,000 24,550,000
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,011,000 100,110,000 7,365,000 73,850,000
{c) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
' . As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
. o - —
ass of shares / Name of shareholder Number of shares % holding In that Numbsr of shares held % holding in that class of
held clags of shares shares
Eulty shares with voting rights
Deepak Milal 1,598,750 16.98% 1,598,750 21.72%
Rajpal Walia 1,788,750 17.87% 1,788,750 24.29%
Rakni Mittal 1,293,750 12,92% 1,293,750 17.57%
Shaifali Walia 1,104,750 11.04% 1,104,750 15.00%
Narendrer Singh Sahney . - 375,000 5.09%
§,787,000 57.61% 6,182,000 83.87%
Note-3 Reserve & Surplus
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs.
(a) Security Pramium
Opening balance 24,550,000 24,550,000
Add: Addition during the year 118,070,000 -
Less: IPO Expenses ¢ (4,689,872) .
Total (A) 138,930,128 24,550,000
{a} Surplus / {Deficit) In Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance 38,497,196 14,375,364
Add: Proft for the year 48,740,609 24,121,833
Total {B) 87,237,808 38,497,197
‘Total (A+B} 2_%6,167,933 ) 623,047,197




Note-4 Long Tenm Borrowings

Non Current Maturitios

Curront Maturities

Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017 As at 31 03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs, Rs. Rs.
Secured Loans ’
{A) Term Loan from Banks
-For Project (Nole-[) 75,956,832 128,746,074 92,838,128 -
-For Vehicle (Note-I) 13,524,898 8,898,573 6,344,391 8,127,423
: 89,481,730 137,744,847 99,180,520 . 8,127,423

Note (1)- The Company has oblained Term Loan from Punjab National 8ank which is secured against hypothecation of Immovable Property of its Real state praject namely 'Oréhid Park’.
The immovable property hypothecation to he bank are standind in the name diractogs but right in the same are devolved into the company under joint venture agreement with them besides
personal gurantaas of directars and other movable assats of company. Qutstanding balance of Loan was of Rs.16,87,02,961 /- (P.Y. Re. 12,87 ,46,074/-)

Note(ll) - Vehicle Loan was secured against hypothecalion of Vehicle. Qutstanding balance of Loan was of Rs. 1,88,69,2885. (Previous Year Rs. 1,71,25,996/-)

Note-5 Short Term Borrowings

{Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs.

Secured Loans
Repayable on Demand

(a) Punjab National Bank- O/D alc 'Refer Note Below 25,154,059 27,468,095
Unsecured Loans
Loan from others 34,010,867 40,377,586

59,164,926 67,845,681

{Previous year Rs. 2,74,68,005/-)

* Note:- OD Secured against Immovable property of Directors and Personal Guaranlee of directors Outstanding balance

of OD was Rs. 2,51,54,059/-

Note-8 Trade Payables

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars Rs. Rs.
{i} Total qutstanding dues lo Mic:o enterprises & Small enterprises - -
Total (i) B B
(i) Total gutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises & Small enterprises
-For guods & services 220,620,808 58,801,666
Total (i) 220,620,806 58,801,666
Total {i+il} 220,620,808 58,801,666

Note:- The company has circulaied lellers to s\xppliers and based on confirmation received so far from the parties, necessary disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are mads in the financial statements In accordance with tha Netification no. GSR 719(E) dated 16/11/2007 iasuad by;
the Ministry of Corporate Affairg. There is no amount oulslanding anable to these enterprises.

Note-7 Other currant

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Rs. Rs.
Other Payables
(i) Statuory Dues o 7.900,277 10,149,829
(i) Advance From Customer 3,665,231 151,629,662
(iii) Expenses Payable 3,852,409 2,567,421
{iv) Temporary Book ovardraft - 118,404,086
(v} Current maturites of long term debt * (Refer Note - 4 above) 99,180,520 8,127,423
Total 114,598,437 290,878,421
Note-8 Short-Term Provision .
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31,03.2017
Rs. Rs,
(a) Provislon for lncome Tax 32,802,251 12,548,100
Total 32,802,284 12,518,100
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Note-10 Non-Cursent investment

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017
Rs.

|Particilars Rs
Non-Trade Investment
(a} Investments in Equity Instruments (of other entities) (Unquoted) -At Cost
14,253 Sharas (P.Y. 11,253 $hares) of Lamane Infrastructure Pyt. Ltd. (Face Valus100/- Eachy Fully pald up in cash 12,509,500 12,509,500
Total 12,508,500 12,509,500
Note-11 Long:term Loans & Advances -
Asg at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars Rs. Rs.
() Unsecured,Considsred goods
(i) Security deposils 26,118,410 8,661,110
Total 26,116,410 8,661,110
Note-12 Inventorles i
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs,
(a) Land and Construction Work-in-Progress 573,039,192 405,375,360
(b) Finished Goads 11,744,040 11,744,040
) Total 584,783,232 417,118,400
Note-13 Trade Receivablas
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
. Rs. Rs.
Unsecured, Consldered good
(a) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due [or payment - 7,428,318
(b} Other Trade receivables 34,673,725 23,623,998
Total 34,673,726 31,052,312
Nota-14 Cash and bank balances o
. As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
4 Particulars
Rs. Rs.
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i} Cash in hand ' 23,005,774 3,651,52
{iiy Balances with banks
- [n current accounts 536,781 1,160.62'
Total 23,542,556 4,812,114
Note-15 Short Term Loans & Advantes
Particulars As at 31.03.201% As at 31.03.2017
Rs. Rs.
Unsecured, Consldered Good )
(a) Advances to Vendor's & Olhers 75,820,202 155,322,64
(b) Advances to Statf 1,125,282 5,462,31
(c) Balances with Government Authorilies 15,695,085 13,714,81
(d} Other Advanca to Supppllers 36,198,285 25,618,5¢
{e) Prepaid Expenses 2,422,253 1,808,2i
Total 131,264,117 202,026,5
Note-16 Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 34.03.2018 As at 31.03,2017
Rs. Rs.
(a} TDS Recovery From Financial Institutions 200,664 1038
(b) Preliminary Expense - 5400
Total 200,664 6439




PUSHPANJAL! REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED

(Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note-17 Revehus from Operations

For the year Ended

For the year Ended

Particulars 31-03-2018 31.03-2017
Rs. Rs.
(a)|Revenue from Operations
Revenue Recognised [rom real state Business 271,795,103 257.078,851
{b}| Other Operating Income
Consultancy fees , 25,000,000 -
296,795,103 257,078,851
Note-18 Other Income
For the year Ended | For the year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Rs. Rs
(a) |interest Income 103,963 360,000
(0)," [Amount forfieted 112,439 2,592,078
(<) Rebale & Discount - 1,4j0.325
216,402 4,362,403
Mote-19 Cost of construction
For the year Ended | For the year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Rs. Rs.
Cost of construction 348,542,839 390,144,999
348,542,839 390,144,989
Note-20 Change In inventories of Finished goods,work-in-progress and others
For the year Ended | For the yeas Ended
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Rs. Rs.
Opening balance
Finished Goods 11,744,040 -
Work in progress 405,375,360 223,008 167
Sub Total {a) 417,119,400 223,008,167
|Closing baiance
'Work in progress 573,039,192 405,375,360
Finished Goods 11,744,040 11,744,040
Sub Total (b} 584,783,232 417,119,400
Total (a-b) (167,663,832) 194,111,233}
Note-21 Employee Benetits Expenses
ES For the year Ended | For the year Ended
- Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Rs. Rs.
{a) |Salaries and wages 9,749,025 7.768,594
() [Contributions to
(i) E.S.I. Fund 110,573 -
(i E.P.F. 364,202 §27 640
(c) |Director Remuneration 6,000,000 2,500,600
Total 16,223,800 10,796,234
Note-22 Finance Costs
For the year Ended | For the year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Rs. Rs.
{a) |Bank Charges 129,487 394,580
(o) [intereston Car Loan 1,785,255 1,762,102
Total 1,914,712 2,156,682




Note-23 Other EXESHSBS

For the year Ended | For the year Ended

Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Rs, Rs.

Advertisement & Publicity 9,283,831 51,000
Audilor's Remuneration (Refer Note (i) below) 295,000 ' 86,250
Brokerage on Sale of Flats 1,432,291 -898,788
Conveyance Expenses 499,113 231,541
Electricity Expanse 240,000 342,819
‘Offico Expenses 576,341 584,328
Printing and Stationary 233,282 528,338
Professional Feas 1,282,391 1,788,184
Insurance 871,673 86,480
Legal Expenses ” 98,691 -
Shorl and Excess ' 550 -
Loss on sale of Fixed assets 3,288,310 -
Postage & Telegram Expenses 73,622 56,770
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 959,508 1,088,988
Sitting Feas of Directors 105,000 -
Tour & Travel Expenses 1,318,341 521,452
Telephone & Internet Expenses 348,669 878,413
Website Development Charges 30,500 23,850
Festival Expenses - 782,904
Rent Expenses - 40,000
- |Donation - 50,000
¥ |Rate and Tax 2,100,194 3,743,783
Preliminary Expenses 340,000 85,000
Total{a) 23,255,405 11,828,892
For the year Ended | For the year Ended

Note Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Rs. Rs.
{i) |Payments to lhe auditors comprisas:

As auditors - statutory audit 200,000 86,250

Tax Audil Fees 75,000 ’
Half Yearly Review Charges 20,000 -
Total 295,000 86,250




PUSHPANJAL!I REALMS AND INFRATECH LIMITED

{Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 24 Addittonal Informatlon to the financial statements

Note Particulars

24.1 |Contingent liabllities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(iy Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company hot acknowledged as debt *

(b} Other money for which the Company is coatingently liable.

{ii) Commitments

(a) Estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for

Tangible assets

Intangible assets

As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

Rs. Rs.
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

242

(i} CIF Value of imporis

(i} Expenditure in Foreign Gurrency

(iii) Total vaiue of All imported/indigenous Raw Material, Spare
Parls & components consumed during the Financial Year
(iv) Amount of Dividends remitted during the year in foreign
Currency to Non«Rééident Shareholgers

(v) Earningsin Foreign Currency

As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

Rs. Rs.
Nil il
Nil Nil
Nil Nit
il Nil
Nil

"
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Name of the company : Pushpanjall Realms and Infratech Limited
{(Formely Known as Pushpanjali Realms And Infratech Private Limited)
+ Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 25 Disclosures undar Actounting Standards {contd.)

Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
252 Earnings per share ’
Basic
Net profit Afler Tax 48,740,609 24,121,833
Weighted Average Number of Equity Share ("éasic) 9,261,570 5,158,863
Nominal value of equity shares (Rs.) 10 10
Basic Earnings per Share {Rs.) 5.26 4.68
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 5.26 4.68
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Rs. Rs.
25.3 Deferred tax (liability) / asset
Opening 8456978 782785
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability - 74.193
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
() On difference between book balance and tax balance of {475,328)
fixed assels
(ii} Disallowance ufs 40(a)(ia) -
(iif) Disallowance u/s 43B - -
(iv} Unabsorbed Depreciation - -
{v} Unabsorbed loss -
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assels {475,328} 74,193
Net deferrad-tax (liability) / asset 381,650 856,978

See accompanying notes {1 to 25) forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our repert attached’

For ARUN NARESH & CO
Chartered Accountanls
Firm No. 007127N

(Deepak Mittal)
Director

DIN: 01616201
%}mil Goyal)

Chief Financial Officer
M.No. : 528123

ime Director
DIN: 06829234

Company Secretary
M.No. : 44295





